          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          8

             -------------------------------x

          9

         10                 April 24, 2007

                            Start:  6:30 p.m.

         11                 Recess: 9:30 p.m.

         12                 Broad Channel American Legion

                            209 Crossbay Boulevard

         13                 Broad Channel, New York 11693

         14

                  B E F O R E:

         15

                         JOHN LIU

         16                                Chairperson,

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Speaker Quinn

         18                                 Joseph Addabbo

                                            Daniel Garodnick

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             David Woloch

          4  Deputy Commissioner

             NYC Department of Transportation

          5

             Maura McCarthy

          6  Queens Borough Commissioner

             NYC Department of Transportation

          7

             Catherine Sweeney

          8  Senior Vice President of Bridges and Tunnels

             MTA

          9

             Norman Silverman

         10  Senior Director of Planning and Development

             MTA Bus Company

         11

             Andrew Albert

         12  Chair

             New York City Transit Riders Council

         13

             Ellyn Shannon

         14  Transportation Planner

             New York City Transit Riders Council

         15

             Betty Braton

         16  Chairperson

             Community Board No. 10

         17

             Delores Orr

         18  Chairperson

             Community Board No. 14

         19

             Frank P. Gulluscio

         20  District Manager

             Community Board No. 6, Queens

         21

             Joanne Shapiro

         22  Chief of Staff

             Assemblywoman Audrey Pfeifer

         23

             Eugene Burch

         24  Senator Serf R. Maltese

         25

                                                            3

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Warren Gardner

          4  District Director

             State Senator Malcolm Smith

          5

             Jackie Wilson

          6  State Senator Shirley Huntley

             10th Senatorial District

          7

             Lew M. Simon

          8  Democratic District Leader

             23rd A.D.- Part B

          9

             Grace McCloske

         10  Rockaway Point Coastal

         11  Donna Gilmartin

             President

         12  Locus Grove Civic Association

         13  Sara Berger

             Good Government

         14

             Joe Hartigan

         15

             Dorothy Williams-Pereira

         16  Citizens Action Team

         17  Catherine Schmidlein

             Breezy Point Community

         18

             Renee Radenberg

         19

             Paul Garcia

         20  West End Realty

         21  Palmer Doyle

         22  Gerard Romski

             Arverne by the Sea

         23

             Anthony Miles

         24  Executive Board Member

             ATU, Local 1056

         25

             Walter Stecher

                                                            4

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Herbert Gormely

          4

             Dan Mundy

          5

             Raju Kalidindi

          6

             Norman Silverman

          7

             Jamila Walida Simon

          8

             Lally Davis

          9

             Aiysha Simon

         10

             Leo Fahey

         11

             John Fazio

         12  Community Board No. 10

         13  Monica Jones

         14  Marie Masiewicz

         15  Mike O'Toole

         16  Vivian Carter

         17  Joseph Clift

             Regional Rail Working Group

         18

             Andrew Chozakis

         19  Community Board No. 14

         20  Lynne Washburn

         21  Robert Rooney

         22  Ronald J. Dillon

             Jewels Street Association

         23

             Sharon O'Connell

         24  Democratic Club

         25  Leonard Kohn

                                                            5

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Chris Thompson

          4

             Chris Wade

          5  Surfriter Foundation

          6  Vincent Castellano

             Community Board No. 14

          7

             Joe Hartigan

          8

             Tom Paladino

          9  TWFM Ferry

         10  Colin Anderson

         11  Mrs. Anderson

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 SPEAKER QUINN: I want to thank you

          3  all for coming out tonight, and I want to first

          4  introduce my colleagues who are here: Council Member

          5  Dan Garodnick of the East Side of Manhattan; John

          6  Liu of Queens, the Chair of our Transportation

          7  Committee; a man who needs no introduction in this

          8  room, Council Member Joe Addabbo.

          9                 Now, tonight is something a little

         10  bit different. It's not a Town Hall meeting in the

         11  typical sense of a Town Hall meeting. This is an

         12  official hearing of the Transportation Committee of

         13  the New York City Council, and we'll be having

         14  witnesses from the MTA and the DOT, et cetera. The

         15  public can testify, but not everyone can testify

         16  because we'll be here all night. But really, we're

         17  first and foremost to have a conversation with the

         18  City agencies and MTA.

         19                 And I want to thank my colleague, Joe

         20  Addabbo. Last fall, I remember it because I left the

         21  South Queens Democratic Club and rushed up to the

         22  Bronx to watch the Yankees win one of the playoff

         23  games, and at that Democratic Club meeting, we

         24  discussed a lot of issues that affect this area, but

         25  the issue that came up over and over and over again
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          2  at that meeting was the issue of transportation, or

          3  the lack thereof, and how isolated this part of

          4  Queens is because of there only being one train

          5  line, because the ferries don't exist, because of

          6  problems with bus service, you know, et cetera, et

          7  cetera, et cetera.

          8                 So, at that hearing I very graciously

          9  offered John Liu's time, I knew he wouldn't say no,

         10  to bring the Transportation Committee here to the

         11  neighborhood to have a direct conversation with

         12  residents and to have the agencies also hear

         13  directly from residents.

         14                 We also did this a couple of months

         15  ago in Staten Island, which was very effective. I

         16  then later on did, as was mentioned, visit District

         17  Leader Lew Simon and I repeated the commitment I had

         18  made to the Council members, so I tried to be a

         19  woman of my word and I'm glad that we were able to

         20  make this promise come true and to have this hearing

         21  here tonight. And I just want to say, the number of

         22  people here tonight, and I know I speak for the folk

         23  from the agencies who are here, the number of folks

         24  who are here tonight on a beautiful night, and

         25  there's a lot of good places you could be in this
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          2  neighborhood on a beautiful night like tonight, the

          3  fact there is so many folks here really sends a

          4  message about how strongly everyone feels about the

          5  transportation problems in this part of Queens.

          6                 So, I want to thank you so much for

          7  taking the time and being so concerned about your

          8  neighborhood and we really look forward to having a

          9  dialogue tonight that will help us really move

         10  further with solutions to the problems and I want to

         11  thank you so much for your time, and I want to thank

         12  everyone here tonight. We'll recognize some of the

         13  dignataries who are here in a minute, but mostly I

         14  want to thank everybody for being here.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         17  Madam Speaker. My name is John Liu, I have the

         18  privilege of chairing the Transportation Committee

         19  in the New York City Council, and I want to thank

         20  Madam Speaker for joining us here in Queens, and my

         21  colleague Joe Addabbo for really highlighting,

         22  continuing to highlight some of the dire concerns

         23  that we have.

         24                 It's great to see so many friends.

         25  Before I was head of the Transportation Committee in
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          2  the City Council, some of you do remember that I was

          3  the head of the Transportation Committee in the

          4  Queens Civic Congress, and at that time we had lots

          5  of issues with the lack of waterways and ferry

          6  service with defunct rail lines, with bus service

          7  that, you know, this area of the City has suffered

          8  like no other area in the City. Not only do we lack

          9  transportation options, but the strike and the

         10  delayed, and delayed and delayed again takeover of

         11  the private bus companies by the MTA, no one

         12  suffered like the people of this area did. And every

         13  night Joe and I were on the phone and we'd be

         14  talking about we don't have ferry service, we only

         15  have one subway line, and every day that goes by

         16  that there was more delays on the takeover, that the

         17  bus service just kept getting worse and worse and

         18  worse.

         19                 Finally, the takeovers are done, some

         20  of us supported that, some of us opposed that. No

         21  matter what, it's done. At least they have some new

         22  buses back on the roads now, we just have to make

         23  sure they get the entire fleet retrofitted. Because

         24  just three months ago, Joe and I were on the corner

         25  of Crossbay and what was that cross street?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Liberty.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Liberty. And we were

          4  holding a news conference to highlight the fact that

          5  there was still old buses on the road, and it was

          6  like a miracle out of nowhere. One of the buses, not

          7  from 20 years ago, not from 30 years ago, but this

          8  Green bus line, this former Green bus line bus,

          9  pulled up, it was a 50-year-old bus. It was like the

         10  most unbelievable thing, and the way we saw it, luck

         11  we could have had, because we were trying to point

         12  out the fact that we needed to get those new buses

         13  on the line, on the road.

         14                 So, it's great to be here. We have,

         15  as Madam Speaker said, this is a very important part

         16  of New York City. We have here Broad Channel and the

         17  surrounding areas in this part of Queens a quarter

         18  of a million people that are almost left out of the

         19  transportation fabric of this City. And when people

         20  start suggesting that we should charge people to

         21  drive into Manhattan, the environmentalists love it,

         22  the people in certain other boroughs love it, but

         23  they don't seem to understand that we don't have any

         24  way to get there, except by driving.

         25                 So, until we reach the day where we
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          2  have real transportation options for everybody in

          3  this City, including those of us here today, we

          4  really need to figure out ways to bring the City

          5  together and get the transportation options out

          6  there, and not try to hit people over the head

          7  because they're driving cars, because it's not like

          8  everybody loves to drive everywhere, some of us do,

          9  but a lot of us would rather take mass transit

         10  options, we just don't have any right now.

         11                 So, it's great that we have the

         12  agencies here, the Department of Transportation. I

         13  want to thank them, the Commissioners and the Deputy

         14  Commissioners, for being out here. We have

         15  representatives and officials from the MTA. They

         16  will be called to testify first, and then I will ask

         17  everybody who would like to speak tonight to fill in

         18  one of these cards, you can get them from the

         19  Sergeants-At-Arms. People from the general public,

         20  we will ask you, because there are a large number of

         21  people who would like to speak, to get to the point

         22  and to stay within a two-minute time frame. The

         23  reason we need to do that is so we can hear from

         24  everybody who would like to speak. And some of you

         25  may think it's unfair that the DOT and the MTA will
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          2  have substantially more than two minutes, but let me

          3  assure you that generally speaking, they would like

          4  to actually have the two minutes enforced upon them

          5  also. But we have a lot of questions for them, and

          6  we have points to make, and they are the people who

          7  have the wherewithal, and those that we rely upon,

          8  to bring us the transportation services that we

          9  need.

         10                 And let me now turn the floor over

         11  first for opening comments by our very distinguished

         12  colleague, Council Member Joe Addabbo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         14  John.

         15                 It's really very little about what we

         16  have to say. We definitely want to hear from those

         17  who are going to give testimony, but just to lend

         18  some thanks to our Speaker Christine Quinn for again

         19  allowing us to be here today. Speaker Quinn, thank

         20  you very much. My colleague John Liu for chairing

         21  this great Committee, and Council Member and

         22  colleague Dan Garodnick, to all the Council staff

         23  who put this together, as well as my staff who is

         24  here tonight, thank you so much.

         25                 The American Legion, I want to thank
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          2  them. Again, Peter Zorn and the American Legion. How

          3  about a round of applause for the American Legion

          4  here.

          5                 The Sergeant-At-Arms who have come

          6  from City Hall, gentlemen, thank you very much for

          7  putting this room together.

          8                 Of course the Mayor's Administration

          9  is here. Again, we appreciate your time here and the

         10  working cooperation, along with the MTA, the working

         11  cooperation that we're going to need in order to go

         12  forward. We appreciate your time here, as well. And

         13  of course, all of you and your participation here

         14  tonight, which makes this Committee worthwhile. If

         15  there were six people in the room, obviously that's

         16  a message that gets sent back to City Hall. The fact

         17  that this room is packed, that's a better message

         18  that gets sent back to City Hall and into the

         19  Mayor's Office.

         20                 Transportation is a very, very

         21  critical issue for the City, for the Mayor to

         22  consider 20, 30 and beyond, we have to deal with the

         23  issues today, and transportation is one of those

         24  issues that somebody will decide where they live or

         25  not live based upon transportation. So, we want to
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          2  keep people here, we want to keep families together,

          3  and that's why transportation in our area, Southern

          4  Queens, is so critical. And we hope we are taking

          5  the positive first step tonight as we address those

          6  issues as the City goes forward to a bright future.

          7                 So, thank you very much for being

          8  here tonight, everyone. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         10  So, without further ado, let me invite our officials

         11  up. Starting with the officials at the New York City

         12  Department of Transportation.

         13                 Thank you, Commissioners Woloch and

         14  McCarthy. I would ask that you start your testimony

         15  by stating your name and title for the record.

         16  Please proceed.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I'm David

         18  Woloch, Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs at

         19  the New York City Department of Transportation. And

         20  with me is Maura McCarthy, who as many of you know,

         21  is the Queens Borough Commissioner.

         22                 Good evening, Speaker Quinn, Chairman

         23  Liu, Council Member Addabbo, and Council Member

         24  Garodnick. I'm David Woloch, Deputy Commissioner for

         25  External Affairs for the New York City Department of
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          2  Transportation. With me today is Maura McCarthy, our

          3  Queens Borough Commissioner.

          4                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

          5  AUDIENCE: We can't hear. We can't hear what's going

          6  on.

          7                 SPEAKER QUINN: Is it on?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Thank you

          9  for providing us with this opportunity to testify at

         10  this oversight hearing on Improving Transportation

         11  Options for Southern Queens. I commend Speaker Quinn

         12  for focusing on this issue, which is important to

         13  Southern Queens, and we're always happy to be out in

         14  the community.

         15                 Southern Queens, in fact, is very

         16  unique from a transportation perspective in

         17  comparison to the rest of the borough and rest of

         18  the City, which we're all aware of. As you know,

         19  most of the area is essentially a peninsula that

         20  connects with the Nassau County mainland and is also

         21  accessible via two bridges, the Marine Parkway

         22  Bridge and the Cross Bay Bridge. The area is served

         23  by two transit modes; the A train as well as by a

         24  number of MTA bus routes.

         25                 As many of you already know, while
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          2  DOT is not responsible for running the City's buses,

          3  subways and commuter railroads, we are responsible

          4  for managing much of the City's transportation

          5  infrastructure, including its streets, highways,

          6  sidewalks and bridges that are utilized by cars,

          7  trucks, buses, pedestrians and bicyclists. DOT is

          8  responsible for installing and maintaining street

          9  signs, traffic signals, and street lights,

         10  resurfacing streets, repairing potholes and other

         11  street defects, installing and maintaining parking

         12  meters and managing municpal parking facilities. The

         13  agency also operates the Staten Island Ferry and

         14  oversees private ferry operations on City-owned

         15  piers.

         16                 In keeping with our mission to

         17  maintain and improve the City's infrastructure, we

         18  are very active in all communities around the City,

         19  including in Southern Queens. DOT has an aggressive

         20  pothole repair and street paving program to restore

         21  the heavy wear and tear on the City's streets. We

         22  have been working diligently to repair the many

         23  potholes that have popped up due to the continuous

         24  freezing and thawing over this past winter, and, to

         25  date, have filled approximately 413 potholes in
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          2  Community Board 14 this fiscal year and 560 in

          3  Community Board 10.

          4                 In addition to filling potholes, DOT

          5  also has an aggressive milling and paving schedule.

          6  In fact, our crews are out right now in Community

          7  Board 14 working to restore over 22 lane miles of

          8  the worst rated streets. In October and November we

          9  will move over to CB 10 where we will restore over

         10  19 lane miles.

         11                 Additionally, last fiscal year we

         12  received a 30 percent funding increase for street

         13  resurfacing, $20 million annually, which has now

         14  been made part of the DOT's baseline budget. And so

         15  we now have more funds available for our milling and

         16  paving operations. This action provided us with an

         17  additional 5.3 lane miles in Community Board 14 and

         18  an additional three lane miles in Community Board

         19  10.

         20                 Our transportation infrastructure

         21  goes beyond just our roadways, as DOT is also

         22  responsible for the installation of traffic signals

         23  thta serve to regulate the flow of traffic. We

         24  typically receive requests for traffic signals from

         25  community boards, elected officials, as well as from
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          2  the general public and they are only installed after

          3  the completion of a study that must meet several

          4  Federal warrants, or at least one of the federal

          5  warrants in place.

          6                 In Southern Queens, five traffic

          7  signals have been approved in Community Board 14

          8  since January 2006. Two of these have been

          9  installed, one on Beach 38th Street at Rockaway

         10  Boulevard, and the other on Arnerne Boulevard at

         11  Beach 59th Street. The installation of the third is

         12  now underway on Beach 59th Street at Beach Channel

         13  Drive, and the remaining two are part of the

         14  proposed Stop & Shop project that has yet to be

         15  completed. In Community Board 10, two signals have

         16  been approved; one on 117th Street at Linden

         17  Boulevard that has already been installed, and the

         18  other one on Pitkin Avenue at Sitka Street, which is

         19  scheduled for installation this July.

         20                 In recent years we have moved forward

         21  on many new initiatives to improve safety, and

         22  critical to these efforts has been our Safe Routes

         23  to Schools Program. In 2004, we announced this

         24  initiative to focus on safety improvements for those

         25  who are the most vulnerable, our children. After
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          2  studying the areas and accident histories around the

          3  City's 1,400 public, private, parochial, elementary

          4  and middle schools, we selected 135 priority

          5  locations. Each priority location underwent thorough

          6  study and in November of 2006, we issued the last of

          7  the 135 Safe Routes Reports, all of which can be

          8  found on DOT's website. Each report contains

          9  specific safety recommendations, and we have already

         10  made over 80 percent of the short-term improvements

         11  at these locations. Out of the 135 priority

         12  locations, 39 are located in Queens. To date, we

         13  have already moved forward on short-term

         14  improvements at these schools, including the former

         15  Junior High School 198 and PS 333, located in

         16  Community Board 14, and PS 96 and PS 108, both

         17  located in CB 10.

         18                 As I mentioned earlier, the existing

         19  transit options available to the residents of

         20  Southern Queens are not provided by DOT, but by the

         21  MTA who will be testifying tonight as well.

         22                 However, while the MTA is responsible

         23  for providing bus service to the area, DOT does play

         24  a role in designating bus stops. After the MTA

         25  identifies a proposed bus route, DOT reviews their
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          2  proposal and determines whether or not the bus route

          3  can be safely installed along the proposed route -

          4  is the street wide enough, are the lanes wide

          5  enough, can the bus safely enter and exit the

          6  traffic flow and can the bus safely execute any

          7  turns along the route. If DOT approves the route we

          8  look at the placement, positioning and length of bus

          9  stops along the route to determine where the bus

         10  stops can be safely placed and then we install the

         11  signs.

         12                 In addition to working with the MTA

         13  on bus stop locations, DOT is also responsible for

         14  the installation of the City's bus shelters that

         15  serve as a refugee for those waiting for buses in

         16  inclement weather. As many of you know, last May we

         17  finalized a 20-year Coordinated Street Furniture

         18  Franchise agreement with Cemusa to install new bus

         19  shelters, newsstands and public toilets throughout

         20  the five boroughs. As part of this franchise

         21  agrement, Cemusa will be replacing 41 existing bus

         22  shelters in Community Board 14 and 33 in Community

         23  Board 10, which will create a more attractive

         24  streetscape.

         25                 In addition to working with the MTA,

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  we also work hand-in-hand with our other

          3  transportation partners, including the New York

          4  Metropolitan Transportation Council, NYMTC, which is

          5  comprised of representatives from DOT, the MTA, the

          6  State Department of Transportation, the City

          7  Department of City Planning and the five suburban

          8  counties. NYMTC is the region's transportation

          9  planning organization, and I mention this because

         10  later this fall NYMTC will be beginning a two-year

         11  study, the Rockaway Land Use/Transportation Study,

         12  which will develop recommendations for short, medium

         13  and long-term transportation investments for the

         14  Rockaway Peninsula. This will be a collaborative

         15  effort with NYMTC, a consultant, a Steering/Advisory

         16  Committee, a Community Stakeholders Committee and a

         17  robust public outreach program.

         18                 While we continue to tackle our

         19  responsibilities to repair and maintain the City's

         20  transportation infrastructure, it is becoming

         21  increasingly apparent that we need to do more. As

         22  our City grows to a population of 9 million and our

         23  transportation network that, for the most part, was

         24  put in place decades and even centuries ago, is at

         25  capacity. We are faced with the fundamental
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          2  challenge of developing strategies to shift travel

          3  away from the automobile and into alternative, more

          4  efficient modes of transportation.

          5                 The Mayor's Long Term Planning and

          6  Sustainability Plan that was announced two days ago

          7  is focused on this hurdle, and it articulates a

          8  number of very clear steps that must be taken to

          9  encourage this shift. Beyond the subway system,

         10  there are other parts of the City's transit network

         11  that must be bolstered, and ferries and buses are

         12  two modes that the City can directly impact.

         13                 The City has for over two decades

         14  been committed to improving and maintaining our pier

         15  infrastructure to encourage private operators to

         16  enter the market and offer ferry service. But while

         17  our "build it and they will come" philosophy has

         18  served us well in the past, we believe that we will

         19  need to do more to encourage private operators to

         20  enter the market and provide service.

         21                 There is continued demand for ferry

         22  services around the City, most notably on the East

         23  River between Queens and Brooklyn to Manhattan,

         24  including here in the Rockaways. To this end, in

         25  collaboration with the New York City Economic
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          2  Development Corporation, we are seeking to pilot

          3  private ferry service from the Rockaways to

          4  Manhattan.

          5                 In doing so, we will work with

          6  Councilman Addabbo and Congressman Weiner to

          7  leverage available funding.

          8                 Improving and transforming bus

          9  service is also critical to our transit

         10  infrastructure. As part of our Bus Rapid Transit

         11  initiative, a joint effort with the MTA and State

         12  DOT, we will be introducing a package of measures to

         13  allow buses to move more quickly and reliably

         14  through the City's streets. To date, we have

         15  selected five corridors, one in each borough, where

         16  we will implement BRT, two of which we expect to be

         17  able to initiate BRT by the end of this year, the

         18  other three in place by the end of 2008.

         19                 We believe that BRT will have a

         20  significant impact on mobility and access for many

         21  New Yorkers, and while the BRT route selected in

         22  Queens is located along Merrick Boulevard, in the

         23  long term we need to, and intend to, move forward

         24  beyond these five corridors to other routes and also

         25  hot spots along many other corridors. Many of the
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          2  discrete BRT elements, such as signal

          3  prioritization, improved bus lanes and off board

          4  fare collection, have potential system-wide

          5  benefits, not just on the chosen BRT routes.

          6                 In closing, I would like to say that

          7  here is much that DOT is doing to maintain the

          8  City's vast transportation infrastructure and

          9  enhance safety and looking forward to the future we

         10  are positioning ourselves now to achieve a

         11  sustainable City by 2030. At this time, I would like

         12  to thank Councilman Addabbo for working

         13  collaboratively with us through the years on

         14  transportation issues that affect Southern Queens.

         15  Thank you for inviting us to testify before you

         16  today, and we would be happy to answer any

         17  questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         19  Deputy Commissioner Woloch. And Commissioner

         20  McCarthy is there for questions and answers; is that

         21  correct?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.

         24                 We certainly appreciate your

         25  testimony, as always. Let me just ask a little bit
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          2  about the buses, and we'll ask the MTA officials

          3  about the buses also.

          4                 In the past few years, have there

          5  been any examinations or proposals by the MTA for

          6  additional bus routes in this area of Queens?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think

          8  that's really a question you need to pose to them.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. But any routes

         10  that the MTA would suggest would go through the DOT

         11  for feasibility. So, do you know of anything that

         12  the MTA has proposed?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Not that

         14  I'm aware of.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. So, we'll hear

         16  from the MTA, but I just have to ask that question

         17  of you while you're still up there, because I think

         18  once you're done and the MTA comes up, we won't be

         19  able to ask you that question.

         20                 So, as far as the DOT knows, there

         21  has been no proposals for the new bus routes for the

         22  area, even though obviously it's a very rapidly

         23  growing area, and even without the growth we still

         24  needed more bus routes and more bus service.

         25                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:
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          2  In fairness to the MTA.

          3                 SPEAKER QUINN: Identify yourself for

          4  the record.

          5                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

          6  I'm Maura McCarthy, the Borough Commissioner for

          7  Queens for DOT.

          8                 In fairness to the MTA, they just

          9  assumed these bus routes from the private

         10  enterprises, and only MTA bus, which were privately

         11  run before, runs to the Rockaways. So, I believe

         12  that they are reexamining routes throughout the MTA

         13  buses, and you need to direct the questions to the

         14  MTA. But in fairness to them, they are newly

         15  assigned to these bus routes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. Well,

         17  Commissioner McCarthy, in fairness to you, because

         18  I'm going to ask you a couple of tough questions,

         19  you're also relatively new in Queens, you've been

         20  our Borough Commissioner for about a year, so I

         21  certainly appreciate the circumstances that you're

         22  in, and in fairness to the MTA Bus Company, it is

         23  absolutely correct that they've only been running

         24  the buses in this area for just shy over a year.

         25                 The question then becomes, what has
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          2  the DOT done? Because the DOT was responsible up

          3  until just a little over a year ago, responsible for

          4  running the buses in this area. So, what has the DOT

          5  done in all of these years to look at the growth in

          6  the neighborhoods and the need for more bus service,

          7  both in frequency and in routes? Did the DOT do

          8  anything to look at the bus routes before the

          9  opportunity came to simply lay it on the MTA?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think

         11  it's fair to say that over the past few years the

         12  focus has been on transferring the service from the

         13  private bus lines to the MTA.

         14                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         15  AUDIENCE: What service?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And in the

         17  intervening years that it took to get that done, you

         18  know, I don't want to belabor this point, but I do

         19  have to say, you know, when we have Commissioners

         20  sitting before this Committee and making statements

         21  like that, I wasn't going to go into this part,

         22  okay? I simply wanted to know how many routes the

         23  MTA had proposed for this area, or new service or

         24  additional service, but we can't simply say, well,

         25  the MTA has been down for just over a year, when, in
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          2  fact, it was the DOT who had been running these

          3  buses for so many years and there was nothing done

          4  to increase the service or improve the service for

          5  the people in this part of Queens.

          6                 (Applause.)

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let's keep it real,

          8  folks. We're here to make sure that there is

          9  accountability for the simple purpose of getting

         10  things done for the future. It's not about harping

         11  on the past, it's about getting the service.

         12                 So, we'll look forward to hearing the

         13  MTA officials. Now, in your testimony, Commissioner

         14  Woloch, you talked about the ferry service and how

         15  the DOT believes they need to do more to encourage

         16  private operators to enter into the market and

         17  provide service and that you'll continue to work

         18  with Councilman Addabbo.

         19                 Councilman Addabbo is a gentlemen.

         20  You guys probably don't think I'm that much of a

         21  gentlemen, because this guy has been providing

         22  funding to the DOT for the express purpose of

         23  setting up those peers right here so that we can get

         24  the ferry service from this part of Queens to

         25  Manhattan. And every single year during budget
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          2  hearings, we talk about this, why hasn't the DOT

          3  used that money or gone ahead with something,

          4  anything? Or tell us what more money you need or

          5  what we can do as a Committee? Because we will hear

          6  from people today. And this is why I'm so happy that

          7  we're making it convenient for the people here, that

          8  there are operators out there who are ready, willing

          9  and able to step up to the plate and provide that

         10  service, so long as the City provides that pier,

         11  because that's our responsibility to do that. So,

         12  why has nothing been done in order to establish that

         13  pier and get that service going?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Right. I

         15  think when we talked previously about that, about

         16  this topic, we've said that our view of the ferry

         17  system is that it's our obligation to provide the

         18  ferry piers. And I guess the point that we're saying

         19  today, and this is, in a very important way it's

         20  different than what we discussed with you

         21  previously, is that we now recognize that we need to

         22  do more. So, we've actually talked about this topic

         23  with yourself and Councilman Addabbo in previous

         24  hearings, as you've mentioned, and when we talked

         25  about this previously we said our approach has been
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          2  and continues to be to invest City capital money in

          3  the ferry pier infrastructure, and that having a

          4  small allocation, a small operating allocation,

          5  isn't necessarily enough, to do more. And what I'm

          6  telling you today is that we are now pursuing a

          7  different, different approach, to more aggressively

          8  leverage funding that's been made available, or

          9  could be made available, and go beyond being, as I

         10  said in the testimony, you build it they will come

         11  philosophy. We recognize we need to do more. We

         12  recognize that the demand will continue to grow, and

         13  we, at the very least, need to put our foot in the

         14  water and see how this works.

         15                 So, we have talked about this before,

         16  but I really want to draw the distinction with what

         17  we're saying today, what our approach is now and

         18  what it's been previously.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So that was then,

         20  this is now, and we are now embarked on a mission to

         21  get it done.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: We want

         23  to get it done. We want to pilot Rockaway ferry

         24  service.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm so happy to hear
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          2  that. And this is precisely -- (applause).

          3                 I want to save time as much as

          4  possible, because we have a ton of people who want

          5  to put their two cents in, and we want to get every

          6  one of those people.

          7                 This is precisely why the Speaker and

          8  Council Member Addabbo insisted on having this

          9  meeting today, and it's to all of your credit that

         10  there is a change of -- well, you know what? There

         11  is a new resolve to connect this important part of

         12  New York City to Manhattan, and so I want to thank

         13  the Commissioner for saying that.

         14                 Just one quick follow-up question.

         15  When we say that we now have the additional funds,

         16  or the possibility of additional funds, how much are

         17  we talking about and when can we see that made

         18  available?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: That's

         20  something we still need to determine. Again,

         21  previously we've had allocations made available by

         22  Councilman Addabbo, and our position has been well,

         23  we can't go beyond that, and that's not enough for

         24  ferry service. There is now a willingness to go

         25  further. We're still thinking through what that
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          2  means, and how to go about doing it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right, I don't

          4  want to risk any more boos and uproars, it's just

          5  going to take time away from us. And we don't want

          6  you to go away with a bad taste, because this is a

          7  very friendly people. We're just a little bit

          8  frustrated, all right? So, we take your word at

          9  that, that there's a new resolve to connect this

         10  part of New York City to the other part of New York

         11  City, because that connection is vitally important.

         12  People are being locked out of opportunities because

         13  they can't get the job opportunities elsewhere. You

         14  can't expect people to commute two hours a day in

         15  each direction. So, that's why we need it so badly.

         16                 And we have another hearing with the

         17  Transportation Committee, I think you'll be at that

         18  hearing next month, the Executive Budget hearings,

         19  so I hope that you'll bring us some more details at

         20  that point. It's only three weeks away, so that it's

         21  not just again another statement without any

         22  substance behind it. We want to make sure that we're

         23  really putting this on the fast track now.

         24                 We have a question and comments from

         25  Madam Speaker Christine Quinn.
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          2                 SPEAKER QUINN: I want to underscore

          3  what Chairperson Liu said. I think the announcement

          4  you're making tonight your focus, new focus on

          5  ferries in this area, is very welcome and very good

          6  news, and I want to very clearly thank the

          7  Department for that. And I want to thank Council

          8  Member Addabbo and everybody else who helped move us

          9  to this point.

         10                 Now, I know as Chairperson Liu

         11  referenced, there is money that the Council had

         12  allocated for this at the request of Council Member

         13  Addabbo, so is what the Department is saying that

         14  that money will now get spent?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: We want

         16  to figure out a way to spend that money in the best

         17  way possible to pilot Rockaway service.

         18                 SPEAKER QUINN: What does that mean?

         19  I'm not trying to be cute. I'm not an expert on this

         20  issue. I don't know what that means.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: As I

         22  said, we're in the process of trying to determine

         23  the best way to do that.

         24                 SPEAKER QUINN: So, one of the things

         25  that's just a reality is that we are going to adopt
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          2  the budget before July 1st, right? So, it's okay, I

          3  think, if you don't have all the answers to all the

          4  questions tonight, but is it fair to say that we're

          5  going to get those answers before the budget goes to

          6  bed? Because if part of the answer is we need X

          7  million more, and I don't know exactly what that is,

          8  then we need to take steps in the budget to make

          9  that a reality, the Administration does, the Council

         10  does, et cetera. So, we may not know the answer

         11  tonight, and I accept that because I think, you

         12  know, DOT was a little busy with the speech on

         13  Sunday, but is it fair to say, or would you commit

         14  to saying that we will get the answers in a time

         15  frame that would allow us to know what the budgetary

         16  actions are so we can consider them when we adopt

         17  the budget?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I can't

         19  make that commitment tonight, but I can tell you we

         20  will try to move as quickly as possible, and if we

         21  can make that information available, we will.

         22                 SPEAKER QUINN: What I would like you

         23  to take back to other folks at the agency is that,

         24  one, we're grateful for the announcement you just

         25  made; but, two, we want to make the announcement as
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          2  meaningful as possible, right? We want to make it

          3  real, as I'm sure DOT does and everybody in the

          4  audience wants it real. And for better or worse for

          5  it to be real, it's going to need some money. So, we

          6  really need to focus with our capital budget people,

          7  and your capital budget people, to getting to the

          8  dollar amount so we know what we have to put in. So,

          9  if my Chief of Stuff Chuck Meara could hear back

         10  from somebody at DOT, or the Office of Management

         11  and Budget, in the next week, about what the time

         12  frame will be and whether we're going to be able to

         13  do it in the budget, that would be a useful

         14  framework for us. Because if the Department's answer

         15  is we can't know by the budget time frame, then I

         16  just want to be clear, we're going to kick it up

         17  over the Department's head to try to get that time

         18  frame changed, because I think we all need to seize

         19  upon this moment to try to get the money in the

         20  budget.

         21                 But I'll be honest, I don't want to

         22  put more money in the budget for this if that money

         23  is going to sit there and not get spent, because

         24  it's money that could go to something else and get

         25  spent. We need to find out what the amount of money
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          2  is, we need to put it in and we need to begin to

          3  spend it. It all won't be in one year, we need to

          4  begin to spend it next year.

          5                 So, if you could have someone get

          6  back to us. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          8                 Questions from Council Member

          9  Addabbo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair.

         12                 Commissioner, again, both

         13  Commissioners, obviously you can hear the

         14  frustration in the audience. This is years of

         15  frustration. As you know, we've had these

         16  conversations, and I think it's a positive step that

         17  we take here today, albeit a very small one I think

         18  it's a positive step. So, again, as we talk about

         19  population growth and the Year 2030, I think we need

         20  to look at, again, this ferry service as another

         21  mode of transportation. Not by means of purely

         22  transportation problems, but definitely a step in

         23  the right direction.

         24                 Two quick questions, as we talk about

         25  population, we have it in Rockaway, as you know, big
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          2  developments there. We have even in the small area

          3  of Hamilton Beach, Howard Beach, you know, 30 or so

          4  lots being sold there; what can constructively be

          5  said to be done as we see this population growth,

          6  what are we doing as far as infrastructure and

          7  transportation specifically for possibly these two

          8  areas as we talk about population growth?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: It's an

         10  extremely important question. As you said, there

         11  will be a great deal of growth in all of those

         12  areas, in the Community Board 14 area growth is

         13  expected over the next 20 years to be over ten

         14  percent, and that is very significant.

         15                 I think we started to talk about it

         16  already tonight. You know, we're not going to build

         17  our way out of this problem in terms of new growths,

         18  and the answer revolves around improving transit.

         19  And the ferry is certainly an important piece of it.

         20  Improving bus service in I think a lot of different

         21  ways is important, an important piece of it, and

         22  there are a number of bus components to the

         23  sustainability requirements articulated by the Mayor

         24  this weekend. And another piece of it is that we

         25  need to do more in terms of making resources
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          2  available through the care of this transportation

          3  infrastructure, to take care of the subway system,

          4  keeping the state of good repair, keep the roads in

          5  a state of good repair.

          6                 So, all these elements of the

          7  transportation network need a larger investment than

          8  they've been getting now. That's an extremely

          9  critical part of it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: You had

         11  mentioned roadway repair, and that's leading up to

         12  my second point. With this population growth, and

         13  also now we've just seen recently with the most

         14  recent storm, we have areas of severe flooding.

         15  Right here in Broad Channel, residents have to part

         16  their car in the middle of Crossbay Boulevard

         17  because of the water that comes up, areas of

         18  Rockaway, Hamilton Beach, again, is still under

         19  water. The bottom line is, I know that DEP obviously

         20  has that issue as well, but for DOT and their

         21  perspective, again, the modes of people getting away

         22  or around the neighborhood with this flooding that's

         23  going on, what can DOT do as far as street repair,

         24  street grading, what can we do to work together to

         25  alleviate the flooding and the ponding that's going
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          2  on on even a mild rainstorm, or dare I say it, a

          3  mild rainstorm and a lunar tide. You know, what can

          4  we do?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Well, I

          6  think there's a few pieces of it. I mean, one piece

          7  is, as you said, DEP is an important part of the

          8  solution. And I know Hamilton Beach is a topic you

          9  have raised before, and I think this just came up,

         10  discussions with Borough Commissioner McCarthy, and

         11  it's something that we have to come out and so a

         12  site visit with you and DEP so we can really look at

         13  the specific concerns concerning there.

         14                 Again, a big part of it is the

         15  resources. You know, we have crews out there all the

         16  time, you know, particularly during the winter,

         17  filling potholes. We'd be much better off if we put

         18  less into filling potholes and were able to put

         19  maybe investment to actually mill and pave the

         20  streets, and also to do more street reconstruction.

         21                 And it's that capital investment,

         22  having the dollars to put into the capital

         23  investment is extremely important.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  That being

         25  said, Commissioner, and to the Speaker's point, this
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          2  being in the midst of the Fiscal Year '08

          3  discussions, I think we should have some type of

          4  price tag of what needs to be put in the budget as

          5  soon as possible to really see what we can do this

          6  year, as far as capital allocation in the budget and

          7  the work to be done. I look forward to working with

          8  you on those issues. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         10  Member Addabbo. Questions from Council Member

         11  Garodnick.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you.

         13                 Good evening, everybody. My name is

         14  Dan Garodnick, and I represent the East Side of

         15  Manhattan, and I wanted to thank Councilman Addabbo

         16  for having me here, of course also the Chairman,

         17  Speaker for this hearing. Just a couple of follow-up

         18  questions for the DOT.

         19                 One is on the point of flooding and

         20  regrading streets to address some of the concerns,

         21  and it is well known that there were a lot of

         22  problems out here during the most recent storm and

         23  in the past; is there some sort of a database that

         24  the DOT keeps with regard to reports and problems of

         25  this type?
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          2                 I can just anecdotally speak from

          3  experiences in my own district where there is

          4  insignificant flooding compared to what was seen

          5  here, but where there is some kind of difficulty in

          6  figuring out whether it is the DEP or the DOT, whose

          7  responsibility it is exactly to repave or create a

          8  catchbasin or to alleviate the problems.

          9                 How do you all keep track of these

         10  complaints? Is there a database? Can you give us a

         11  sense of that?

         12                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

         13  What I can say is that in many site visits with both

         14  Councilman Addabbo's office and the Community Board

         15  offices here in Broad Channel, DEP and DOT are

         16  working specifically at the end of West 12th Street.

         17  It's going to be a temporary fix on that block, and

         18  there are very major, as everyone here knows, are

         19  major infrastructure problems from a DEP

         20  perspective.

         21                 We typically get notified by the

         22  community, and believe me, we keep a record of only

         23  complaints. We close the complaint for a civil

         24  calming condition (sic) which we can correct with

         25  our roadway crews. But the problems out here are not
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          2  civil calming conditions, they are here at Hamilton

          3  Beach, most of Rockaway is now under construction,

          4  as the people here from Rockaway know.

          5                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

          6  AUDIENCE: Thank you. You're doing a good job.

          7                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

          8  Well, it is not just me, it is many different

          9  agencies working together and it's millions and

         10  millions of dollars.

         11                 So, we are working with the different

         12  agencies. I can't speak for DEP, and after tonight I

         13  will go back and see what the long range plans are

         14  for these two separate communities. What we need to

         15  work together on infrastructure, not just the

         16  roadway, but the underlying stormwater drain off. We

         17  are helping the people on West 12th Street on a

         18  short-term basis. Hopefully the tide is not going to

         19  come over the end of their block any longer. But

         20  we're working together as agencies block-by-block,

         21  but for Hamilton Beach, for Broad Channel, it's not

         22  a lot-by-lot solution, it's a much larger problem.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So, just to

         24  make sure that I understand, and I appreciate that

         25  you've been working closely with the folks at the
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          2  end of West 12th Street, you have an ongoing list of

          3  the complaints that you have heard that require the

          4  attention of DOT specifically, and can you give us a

          5  sense of how long that list is?

          6                 QUEENS BOROUGH PRESIDENT McCARTHY: I

          7  don't particularly in my own office. We refer all of

          8  these complaints to our Capital Roadways Commission,

          9  and I can get back to you to see what type of

         10  database they keep. It's not like we throw them

         11  away.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: No, no, I'm

         13  certain you don't throw them away. And I only ask

         14  the question really because I think that it is, you

         15  know, it's an intersection between the jurisdiction

         16  of two different agencies, and it's something that

         17  we see around the City, so I wanted to address that

         18  with you here. But I'm glad to hear you don't throw

         19  them away. I didn't expect you did. But I think it

         20  would be useful for us to know that there is either

         21  a prioritization through the date of receipt of

         22  complaint, or at some sort of an ongoing check,

         23  either the local Council member, or the

         24  Transportation Committee or anybody could take a

         25  look and see the progress as to how things are being
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          2  attended to.

          3                 Also, on the subject of buses,

          4  obviously this is a point of great frustration in

          5  Queens, Commissioner Woloch you testified earlier

          6  that it is the responsibility of DOT to assess

          7  really the appropriateness of the bus routes rather

          8  than actually placing them, you can figure out where

          9  the street is wide enough, appropriate for a bus

         10  stop or a bus shelter and things like that. I heard

         11  in your answer to Chairman Liu's question that you

         12  were not approached by the MTA specifically for new

         13  routes, but as the agency responsible for dealing

         14  with issues of traffic congestion and things of that

         15  nature, is there anything that you could point to in

         16  this area that would be an obstacle, in your view,

         17  for additional bus service? Or anything that you

         18  could think about that you could point to that would

         19  inhibit or prevent the MTA from placing new buses in

         20  this area?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Well,

         22  again, I think part of that answer, it's something

         23  that obviously requires capital places to put buses,

         24  and that's something that they can talk more about.

         25  I think those are some of the biggest hurdles.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Well, put

          3  us at financing of it for a second. Put us at

          4  financing of it, because obviously that's a big

          5  piece for any project or anything like that. I'm

          6  really thinking about, you know, you had mentioned

          7  in your testimony about is the street wide enough

          8  and safe enough and all of those sorts of things, is

          9  there anything about the specific topography,

         10  infrastructure, anything about this area that would

         11  create in your mind an obstacle for significant new

         12  bus routes, buses in Southern Queens?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Well, I

         14  think part of the challenge is you have narrow

         15  roadways and there are a number of roads in this

         16  area that are narrow. If you're going to create a

         17  new use, if you're going to put in say a bus stop

         18  where one didn't exist previously, that space has to

         19  come from somewhere. And I think that, you know,

         20  that's a challenge that they have a limited amount

         21  of space, and as you take space for anything new,

         22  whether it's going to be a new bus stop, a new bus

         23  lane, it's going to have to come from somewhere

         24  else, and that's always a challenge. For instance,

         25  you have to put a bus stop where parking exists,
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          2  that's something that there's going to be somebody

          3  who is not going to want to give up their parking.

          4  So, it's not, you know, again, I think the dollars

          5  is a big piece of it. And you're right, there are

          6  other pieces of placing something new on our street

          7  system that's always easier said than done.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I don't

          9  mean to suggest by my question that there are

         10  obstacles. In fact, it sounds from what you said

         11  that really the only thing that you can think about

         12  is the potential for a narrow roadway or making sure

         13  that a bus could actually through on a particular

         14  route. Is there anything else that we should be

         15  thinking about here? And I don't ask this question

         16  with an intent to elicit from you obstacles. I just

         17  want to make sure that we have them all out on the

         18  table so if there are none, then that's great, it's

         19  a matter of MTA just coming to you and saying, okay,

         20  well, here is where we want to have--

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Yes, I

         22  don't want to suggest that these obstacles are

         23  small. I think they're significant. The width of a

         24  roadway, the geometry of a roadway, can a bus

         25  navigate a turn, I think the engineering issues are
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          2  significant, because ultimately at the end of the

          3  day they involve safety, which is something we're

          4  all concerned about.

          5                 And, again, you know, the issues of

          6  how the space gets used and who gets to use it is an

          7  important one.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: In Southern

          9  Queens the idea is that the bus service is

         10  inadequate and that there is not adequate means to

         11  transport people around, so I know that in the

         12  process of finding those routes, I hope the DOT will

         13  work with the Council, and of course, Council Member

         14  Addabbo, in finding those appropriate locations,

         15  which surely there are, and try to overcome any of

         16  the potential obstacles that are out there, because

         17  this is clearly a need in this community. But with

         18  that, I don't want to take up too much time, because

         19  there is a lot of people to testify.

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         21                 SPEAKER QUINN: I just wanted to ask

         22  one follow-up question, and I don't want to take up

         23  too much time because we want to hear from the MTA

         24  and the public, but the NYMTC study that you

         25  mentioned, I'd be just interested in getting, and
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          2  you can have follow-up conversations with Chuck in

          3  my office, or provide information to Phil, the

          4  Counsel to the Transportation Committee, but I'd

          5  just like to have a better sense of what the scope

          6  of that is, what the goals of that are, what the

          7  time frame markers in that are.

          8                 If you can go into it, but I don't

          9  want to take up too much time. If you prefer to

         10  provide it to us afterwards, that's fine.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I'll just

         12  address it briefly and we'll get you the information

         13  afterwards. We expect that it will be a two-year

         14  study, and I think one way to think about it is,

         15  you're going to hear a lot of issues raised tonight,

         16  and many of those issues are issues that the NYMTC

         17  study will be able to take a look at, so I think

         18  this is an opportunity for some of the suggestions

         19  that are raised here.

         20                 I will bring that out to NYMTC and

         21  hopefully a number of our topics are going to be

         22  addressed in the study.

         23                 SPEAKER QUINN: One thing that I think

         24  would be great is, because we had similar studies,

         25  not exactly NYMTC, studies done in my district where
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          2  truck traffic is a big issue. I represent the West

          3  Side of Manhattan, Greenwich Village, Chelsea,

          4  Hell's Kitchen, the Central Business District, and

          5  truck issues are really a big, big traffic issue

          6  there, and we've had a number of times when truck

          7  studies have been done, and one of the challenges

          8  sometimes is, is that the scope of the study may be

          9  less than what the community wanted.

         10                 So, I don't know how it works with

         11  NYMTC, because I don't think those were NYMTC

         12  studies, I think they were Department studies, if

         13  there is some way that we could make sure that in

         14  the beginning, before the decision is made about

         15  what the A, B, C and D in the study will be, there's

         16  an opportunity through the elected officials'

         17  offices or the community boards, whatever the

         18  appropriate vehicle is, to have the community help

         19  inform the scope.

         20                 Because what I wouldn't want to see

         21  is a two-year concerted effort that did a lot of

         22  good research, but the research didn't hit the nail

         23  on the head of what the neighborhood wanted looked

         24  at. So, if we could do that and very, very up front,

         25  I think would be helpful.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think

          3  that's generally how the NYMTC studies work. They

          4  get federal money and as part of that there's a

          5  process they have they go through, and there's a lot

          6  of outreach involved.

          7                 So, I think what you just cited, in

          8  terms of getting that input into us, getting that

          9  input into NYMTC in the beginning of the study, that

         10  opportunity is going to be there.

         11                 SPEAKER QUINN: If maybe you could

         12  also just provide to the Committee what out in the

         13  time frame markers, what the pre-outreach is, and

         14  what the time frames are on that so we can make sure

         15  the local elected officials and the community boards

         16  have all of that input so they can add it into their

         17  own work plans of the stuff that they're doing as

         18  well.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I will be

         20  happy to do that.

         21                 SPEAKER QUINN: Okay, thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         23  We appreciate the Department of Transportation for

         24  joining us out here in Beach Channel for this

         25  hearing.
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          2                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

          3  AUDIENCE: Broad Channel.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Oh, I'm sorry, Broad

          5  Channel. You're right.

          6                 Let me invite the officials from the

          7  MTA to join us at the witness table. And let me also

          8  acknowledge that we've been joined by a

          9  representative from Assemblywoman Audrey Fiefer's

         10  Office, Joanne Shapiro, and a representative from

         11  State Senator Serf Maltese's office, Jean Birch.

         12                 And also our friend Ruben Wills, a

         13  representative of State Senator Shirley Huntly. And

         14  Warren Gardner, a representative from Senator

         15  Malcolm Smith, and our Democratic leader.

         16                 Well, thank you very much for joining

         17  us at this hearing. I believe we are going to hear

         18  from the powerhouse at the table of four, the only

         19  woman there, Catherine Sweeney, MTA Senior Vice

         20  President.

         21                 MS. SWEENEY: It's nice to be here.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And if you like, you

         23  can identify your colleagues for the record.

         24                 MS. SWEENEY: Yes, good evening, Madam

         25  Speaker, Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee. I'd
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          2  like to introduce to my right, Chair Raskin, who is

          3  Assistant Director of Intergovernmental Community

          4  Relations for New York City Transit. To my left is

          5  Vice President Jim Harding, Vice President of

          6  Intergovernmental and Community Relations for MTA

          7  Bus. And next to him is Norman Silverman, who is

          8  Senior Director of Planning and Development, also

          9  for MTA Bus, and sitting in the audience --

         10                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         11  AUDIENCE: Turn up the mic. We can't hear you.

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         13  AUDIENCE: We can't hear.

         14                 SPEAKER QUINN: Just pull it closer to

         15  your mouth.

         16                 MS. SWEENEY: In the audience we also

         17  have the general manager of the Crossbay and Marine

         18  Parkway Bridge, John Ryder (phonetic).

         19                 Before we begin, I'd also like to

         20  acknowledge we have a member of the MTA Board

         21  present, Andrew Albert is also present in the

         22  audience this evening.

         23                 I've been asked to address the

         24  community today on a number of MTA issues, and I am

         25  fortunate, of course, to have a number of colleagues
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          2  here who will also assist with any back-up

          3  questions. I am the Vice President of MTA Bridges

          4  and Tunnels, and I wanted to begin with the specific

          5  issue that I understand was raised by Councilman

          6  Addabbo, and that was a suggestion that tolls be

          7  eliminated during memorial day to Labor Day on

          8  Crossbay Bridge. I was given a list of four issues

          9  to address, and that's what I'll be addressing

         10  obviously, and other issues that you raise.

         11                 Profound issues unfortunately do not

         12  permit us to provide free passage to the general

         13  public for Broad crossing, except for (inaudible

         14  word) vehicles, and a toll must be charged to each

         15  vehicle. That is precisely the reason that the Broad

         16  Channel residents see each toll charge on their

         17  statement and then a rebate of that toll charge,

         18  because that comes from a special fund. So, your

         19  suggestion is not possible because of the bond

         20  issues. If your suggestion was the same arrangement

         21  for non-residents during that period, that would

         22  come to a cost of $3.6 million to our revenue, and

         23  our revenue, as I'm sure you all know, is dedicated

         24  not only to our operations, but to provide transit

         25  subsidies. So, that becomes a difficult one.
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          2                 I understand that the suggestion was

          3  a concern about the back-up of traffic during those

          4  months in the neighborhood community, with regard to

          5  anyone in particular. There are two issues that

          6  create the back-up, one would be the timing of the

          7  lights in the approach to the bridge, which then DOT

          8  controls that and I'm sure they will tell you that

          9  the preference is given to the community for

         10  community access, but it does slow up the traffic.

         11  I'm sure that you would not want to trade off

         12  community access.

         13                 The second factor that develops

         14  back-up is the people have EZPass when they get to

         15  the toll plaza. The toll plaza itself and the bridge

         16  itself has the capacity, it's the toll payment

         17  process that can be slowed when the number of people

         18  that have EZPass decreases. And in fact, it does

         19  decrease on summer weekends.

         20                 So, one of the things that we would

         21  like to do to address the concern is to have a

         22  special campaign, a marketing campaign, aimed at

         23  beach-goers to increase the number of beach-goers

         24  who have EZPass, because there is no back-up in

         25  EZPass lanes, there never is. EZPass usage takes
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          2  from about 75 percent of traffic on a weekday during

          3  the summer to between 58 and 68 percent on the

          4  weekends and on holidays, which is when the worst

          5  back-up occurs.

          6                 So, we're planning to do ads, we're

          7  planning to do hand-outs in the cash lanes, and we

          8  hope that that will break up, have some physical

          9  impact in breaking up the traffic. The cash lines

         10  back-up, EZPass lanes do not back-up, the cash lanes

         11  are backed up enough, they back up EZPass customers

         12  too.

         13                 So, that would be the way to address

         14  that. I am hoping everybody here or most of the

         15  people here have EZPass. If you don't, I brought, as

         16  I always do, a stack of EZPass applications.

         17                 The other issues involve the issues

         18  that were identified, and I'll make those comments

         19  and then if there are any follow-up questions, and I

         20  have specific presentations by MTA Bus also.

         21                 One issue raised was information on

         22  the A line, the A train. During off-peak hours the

         23  Lefferts branch of the A train carriers fewer riders

         24  than the Rockaway branch. But given that each branch

         25  only has four transit an hour, it would be difficult
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          2  to shift another train over to the Rockaway branch.

          3                 The New York City Transit schedules

          4  subway service to the ridership requirements on the

          5  basis of service and loading guidelines approved by

          6  the MTA Board, taking into account available traffic

          7  capacity. Service and loading guidelines provide New

          8  York City Transit with the means of fairly

          9  allocating service levels throughout the City. A

         10  service to the Rockaways operates within the New

         11  York City Transit guidelines, based on ridership

         12  levels.

         13                 During rush hours, New York City

         14  Transit schedules the maximum number of A trains

         15  that the Eighth Avenue line tracks can carry, given

         16  that A train shares traffic with other subway lines,

         17  the C and the D. Expanding rush hour A service to

         18  and from the Rockaways would therefore require

         19  reallocating existing service through Lefferts

         20  Boulevard branch at the A train, which would leave

         21  them below the guidelines. At other times of day

         22  while the capacity exists to provide additional A

         23  train service to the Rockaways, ridership levels are

         24  not high enough to warrant a higher level of

         25  service.
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          2                 I also understand that there was a

          3  question raised about reactivation of the Long

          4  Island Railroad Rockaway Beach Terminal.

          5                 (Applause.)

          6                 MS. SWEENEY: A summary of a planning

          7  study that was done by MTA in the 1990s, an

          8  evaluation of reinstitution of the Long Island

          9  Railroad service via the Rockaway branch, each

         10  branch line. Unfortunately, implementation of such a

         11  service face significant and fundamental

         12  implementation and operational challenges that make

         13  its feasibility doubtful.

         14                 (Audience outburst.)

         15                 MS. SWEENEY: The estimate from the

         16  planning studies, and it was conceptual and it was

         17  in the '90s, was $900 million, at a cost of $900

         18  million. That wasn't even the greatest obstacle. The

         19  greatest obstacle involved operational issues, such

         20  as the capacity at Penn Station and the use of

         21  trackage, and I won't pretend to be an expert on

         22  those issues. But there is a planning study, and

         23  certainly I just can talk in more detail about that,

         24  and if there are other questions, we'll certainly

         25  make that study available.
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          2                 The final issue, the final topic that

          3  I was asked to speak about actually involves the

          4  work of MTA Bus, which has been noted here they have

          5  only been in existence for less than two years, and

          6  for that I wanted to call on Norman Silverman, who

          7  has been involved in a number of development work

          8  here in Southern Queens.

          9                 Norman.

         10                 MR. SILVERMAN: I think some of the

         11  Council members know me. As you know, the MTA Bus

         12  Company, particularly the area in Southern Queens

         13  you folks want to hear about, has been under the MTA

         14  aegis or operation for a little over a year. In that

         15  time we have made what I would like to think are

         16  very significant strides and improvement in service

         17  in doing the kinds of things that are necessary.

         18                 What we inherited from the private

         19  bus company needed an awful, awful lot of work, both

         20  in terms of the infrastructure in the garages that

         21  you don't see, and in terms of the hiring practices

         22  and the training practices, and the equipment that

         23  you do see. Clearly, the most obvious changes in the

         24  equipment you've seen, we've replaced the entire

         25  Express Bus fleet, that happened in less than a
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          2  little over a year that we've been down here. You're

          3  seeing the new hybrid electric local buses in

          4  service now, we currently have about 150 out of over

          5  284. They are being distributed throughout the six

          6  depots that provide local service that we operate,

          7  including those in Southern Queens, operating by the

          8  former Green Company.

          9                 In the area of service what we found

         10  was that the schedules that have been operated were

         11  woefully inadequate. They didn't provide the kinds

         12  of marketable service that people would like. They

         13  didn't provide uniform even service levels, they

         14  didn't reflect updated running times, dealing with

         15  existing traffic conditions. So, in the last year we

         16  incrementally route-by-route, adjusting the service,

         17  improving them, adding service, making a few route

         18  revisions here and there, and I think it was

         19  important that I heard the mention of new routes. I

         20  think our position is that we want to get the

         21  existing routes structure running a lot better than

         22  it is right now, and that's going to take a bit of

         23  time, but we are moving at a very, very quick pace,

         24  and we are improving issues across the board, and

         25  continue to dramatically improve service and adjust
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          2  service, and we'll continue to do so.

          3                 MS. SWEENEY: As I said earlier,

          4  obviously questions that we can't answer this

          5  evening, we'll be sure to get back to you. We very

          6  much appreciate such a large and attentive audience.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, let me first

          8  welcome you to Queens.

          9                 So, the incremental improvements that

         10  we should be looking for, and I totally accept what

         11  Commissioner McCarthy said earlier, that MTA bus has

         12  been running these formerly private company routes

         13  for just a little over a year. And Norm, you and I

         14  have spoken at length about this, as well as with

         15  Tom Savage, the President of MTA Bus, so we are

         16  looking forward to further improvements.

         17                 But we've also talked about the need

         18  just to get the new buses out of the depots, get

         19  them off the shelf and onto the streets. So, do we

         20  have at this point any remaining new buses that have

         21  not yet been put on the streets?

         22                 MR. SILVERMAN: As fast as we can have

         23  them from the manufacturer, we inspect them and put

         24  them in service. We have 150 out of the 284 buses.

         25  This is a joint order with the New York City
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          2  Transit. They are getting 216, we're getting 284.

          3  Approximately 150, plus the last few we have

          4  received, and they are all in service as we speak.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, when you say 284

          6  new buses for the MTA Bus Company, are you talking

          7  about just for the lines run by Green, or are you

          8  talking about Citywide?

          9                 MR. SILVERMAN: I'm talking about all

         10  the former seven companies.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, what's the

         12  allocation for the routes that used to be served by

         13  Green Bus Company?

         14                 MR. SILVERMAN: Green Bus currently

         15  has -- I don't have exact numbers, but --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I mean, literally

         17  Joe and I were standing on the corner of Liberty and

         18  Crossbay and this, like, this bus that comes out of

         19  like the Honeymooners pulls up. I mean, it was

         20  unbelievable luck.

         21                 MR. SILVERMAN: We don't have any bus

         22  50 years old.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That bus was like

         24  nothing I've ever seen before. I mean, really.

         25  Really.

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 MR. SILVERMAN: The fleet we inherited

          3  provide the companies -- there is no doubting that

          4  the fleet we inherited was significantly over-age.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

          6                 MR. SILVERMAN: You can't undo that in

          7  a year.

          8                 What we are providing right now in

          9  the JFK Depot, there are approximately 50 to 55 new

         10  buses, and in the Rockaway depot, both of these were

         11  operating by Green. I don't have the exact number

         12  but it's something like approximately 30 buses. So,

         13  there are about 80 new local buses, approximately,

         14  in the former Green territory, and approximately 45

         15  new express buses.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right. So, in

         17  this area, out of the JFK and the Rockaway depots,

         18  we have roughly 85 local buses there.

         19                 MR. SILVERMAN: Approximately.

         20  Eighty-five local new buses.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right, 85 local new

         22  buses, and 55 new express buses.

         23                 MR. SILVERMAN: Approximately.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. And what's the

         25  total capacity for those depots? Roughly?
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          2                 MR. SILVERMAN: Capacity, JFK is about

          3  200, little less than 200 of these buses, and

          4  Rockaway capacity is where we're currently now about

          5  90 buses.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The capacity.

          7                 MR. SILVERMAN: It's over capacity.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

          9                 MR. SILVERMAN: That's one of the

         10  requirements we have to deal with.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I mean, we're not

         12  looking to -- I mean, I personally don't like to

         13  beat the MTA up, okay? And I think it's a good sign

         14  that it is now about 50 percent new buses. So, now,

         15  there's a pending order, we're still waiting for

         16  another shipment of about, if I heard you correctly,

         17  about 130 new buses for MTA bus company?

         18                 MR. SILVERMAN: About 135.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Citywide. How many

         20  of those can we expect for these two bus depots, JFK

         21  and Rockaway.

         22                 MR. SILVERMAN: The assignment isn't

         23  exactly firm, but somewhere probably in the order

         24  of, I'm willing to say between another 50 and 75.

         25  Something of that ilk.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So then we'll get to

          3  close to three-quarters -- and what's the timing for

          4  that?

          5                 MR. SILVERMAN: We expect to have

          6  those in the fall of this year.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, by fall of this

          8  year, about three-quarters of the buses that run in

          9  this part of the City, in this part of Queens, will

         10  be the new buses?

         11                 MR. SILVERMAN: A little bit less than

         12  a quarter statistically, but you're close.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Less than

         14  three-quarters?

         15                 MR. SILVERMAN: Less than

         16  three-quarters statistically.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. Could be less

         18  than a quarter, you shocked me there.

         19                 MR. SILVERMAN: I didn't mean to shock

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right. A little

         22  less than three, say 70 percent of the buses will

         23  have been new?

         24                 MR. SILVERMAN: Approximately.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And then, of course,
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          2  we still need a plan to get all of the buses

          3  replaced, because those buses are still breaking

          4  down and stranding passengers along the way.

          5                 MR. SILVERMAN: That's what we have

          6  right now.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So we have to work

          8  on getting the budget into that.

          9                 We have a representative from

         10  Congressman Anthony Weiner, Livan Sleeper, who is

         11  here, an the Congressman has been very helpful in

         12  getting us the federal funds necessary in order to

         13  buy these new buses, so we certainly look forward to

         14  getting those funds, additional funds.

         15                 MR. SILVERMAN: I don't mean to

         16  correct you, but I have to, we don't use federal

         17  funds to buy buses.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Norman, you're

         19  opening up another can of worms there with that

         20  statement. Let's not go there, okay? Come on.

         21  Please, Madam Speaker, I'm not trying to open up

         22  this can of worms here, but --

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

         24  Do it.

         25                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:
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          2  Do it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let me just put it

          4  out for the record, and this hearing is being

          5  recorded visually and audio and in audio so that a

          6  full transcript will be available, as well as it

          7  will also be broadcast on our favorite channel,

          8  channel 74. For those insomniacs out there, please

          9  tune in.

         10                 The DOT, and I'm glad we still have

         11  some officials who represent the DOT here, for years

         12  Mayor Bloomberg refused, absolutely refused to buy

         13  new buses with federal funds that were earmarked for

         14  the purpose of buying new buses. $160 million left

         15  on the table. Well, what happened to that money?

         16  That money, the Bloomberg Administration claims, and

         17  I think they are right, they are being truthful in

         18  this, that they transferred that money to the MTA.

         19  So, let's not talk about how the MTA doesn't use

         20  federal funds to buy new buses. The MTA may redivert

         21  some of those federal funds to buy other things and

         22  use MTA funds to buy new buses. But who cares? It's

         23  still federal funds that are coming through, and

         24  they need to be used to buy new buses. So, I don't

         25  care how you characterize it, we just need the new
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          2  buses on the road.

          3                 I mean, I really don't want to get

          4  into that, all right? We can spend another hour.

          5  Okay, let's leave it at that. We need to get the

          6  buses. It's an encouraging sign that today 50

          7  percent of the buses that serve this area are the

          8  new buses. By the end of this year it will be up to

          9  70 percent. We need to get to 100 percent as quickly

         10  as possible.

         11                 Council Member Addabbo.

         12                 Oh, I'm sorry. Madam Speaker.

         13                 SPEAKER QUINN: I, prior to being

         14  Speaker, have never been on the Transportation

         15  Committee, so I'm learning a lot tonight. And I'm

         16  not a South Queens transportation expert, but I'm

         17  learning a lot. But I didn't understand anything you

         18  said about the tolls. You need to pick the mic up. I

         19  don't mean to be rude. It didn't make sense to me.

         20                 And two follow-up questions to that:

         21  One, as I understand it, similar to the requests

         22  made by Council Member Addabbo, that idea reflects

         23  the situation at Jones Beach, (a); and then (b), for

         24  argument's sake, let's say there is some bond

         25  restriction that prevents, you know, letting go of
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          2  the toll in this area and it's a different bond

          3  restriction, Jones Beach, just for argument's sake,

          4  isn't there an ability somehow legislatively, maybe

          5  not by the Council, but by the State Legislature or

          6  the entity that created the bond, whose ever bonds

          7  they were, to go back and make changes there?

          8                 I mean, I know that there have been

          9  other bond issuances in other matters, and it's good

         10  to know where the set of requirements and specifics

         11  around those bonds are changed in future years. So,

         12  one, what's the difference here than Jones Beach?

         13  And two, why is it in this particular bond structure

         14  we're locked into it permanently?

         15                 MS. SWEENEY: I'm not a lawyer, but

         16  the bond covenants are contracts so that you can't

         17  change the agreements that are part of the existing

         18  bond contracts. If you reissue, you can make

         19  adjustments. What I was referring to were the

         20  arrangements that were made for the Broad Channel

         21  residents, and that toll rebate comes out of a

         22  separate fund. So, it doesn't impact the bond

         23  covenants, because of the mortgage recording tax,

         24  and that was paid policy of the MTA Board, this

         25  policy action at the MTA Board.
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          2                 SPEAKER QUINN: I don't understand why

          3  what you were saying prohibits what Council Member

          4  Addabbo requested happening. And, one, I'm not sure

          5  that the covenant statement is correct, but we

          6  should look at it. I could be wrong. Two, I'm not

          7  sure that there's never been a reissuance. If that's

          8  the only time we could do this, I would think there

          9  had been. But, three, and Chairman, maybe you

         10  understand this issue better. I don't understand.

         11                 MS. SWEENEY: I was told the proposal

         12  was to have all residents, to eliminate the toll for

         13  all residents to the non-residents of Broad Channel

         14  from Memorial Day to Labor Day.

         15                 Can you hear me?

         16                 SPEAKER QUINN: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: My proposal

         18  was to remove the toll. If we cannot remove the toll

         19  totally, which I think is really what should be

         20  done, but if you're going to say that it's a

         21  monetary issue, you know, because even for my

         22  proposal, 3.6 million, and it's a revenue thing for

         23  the MTA, my proposal was, though, to close the toll

         24  or no toll for everyone from Labor Day to Memorial

         25  Day, since you make your money during Memorial Day
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          2  to Labor Day, similar to what they do at Jones

          3  Beach. That would at least be half fair. Still I

          4  believe that the toll should be eliminated totally.

          5  That toll was really, a toll was put there to pay

          6  for the repairs, and I believe the actual

          7  construction of that bridge, long paid, long, long

          8  paid, many, many years ago. You don't need that toll

          9  anymore.

         10                 Is there another toll in the borough,

         11  within the borough where you have to pay another

         12  toll? No. There isn't. This is the only place within

         13  the borough that you have to pay going from one

         14  place in the borough to the other place in the

         15  borough.

         16                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

         17  In the City.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: In the City.

         19  You know, again, I think the fairness of the toll is

         20  absolutely absurd. There is no fairness at all to

         21  the toll on that bridge.

         22                 Okay, what we're doing is, I don't

         23  want to take up your time, what we're doing is we're

         24  hampering the economic development in the area. No

         25  store is going to look to open up in Rockaway
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          2  knowing that nobody from north of there is going to

          3  pay a toll to shop there. So, it's really a problem.

          4  Long-term it's a problem.

          5                 So, anything, anything that can be

          6  done. And I know there are people in the audience

          7  who have been arrested on this issue. I know there

          8  are people fighting for this issue for decades. You

          9  are not going to get arrested tonight. But the

         10  bottom line is, the bottom line is, in the eyes of

         11  fairness, and I know it's tough because it is a

         12  revenue issue, but the bottom line is something has

         13  to be done with a reduction for that toll, you know?

         14  Or something to mitigate the cost and the

         15  ill-effects of that toll.

         16                 MS. SWEENEY: All right, I apologize

         17  for having complicated the question. I can provide

         18  the information about the bond covenants and give

         19  you a more formal response to this.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: I appreciate

         21  that.

         22                 MS. SWEENEY: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: While we're at it,

         24  because we don't want to be arrested tonight, let me

         25  recognize that we've been joined by the Commanding
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          2  Officer of the 106 Precinct, Joe Cortisis

          3  (phonetic), who is a very, very nice man. The new

          4  commanding officer.

          5                 And also, Lieutenant Sally (phonetic)

          6  from Transit 23.

          7                 This also is an issue that Council

          8  Member Addabbo has been raising at City Hall for

          9  quite some time now, and we appreciate the

         10  information that you can get us on the bond

         11  covenants, et cetera. But at the end of the day, and

         12  this is something that we hope the MTA could work

         13  with the City on, we just need to get rid of those

         14  tolls. We don't need confirmation.

         15                 And the explanation of the bond

         16  covenants, restricting our ability to remove those

         17  calls, when, in fact, those debts were paid off a

         18  long time ago, that really doesn't pass muster. I'm

         19  not a lawyer, and I know it doesn't pass legal

         20  muster. That's like saying the MTA doesn't use

         21  federal funds to buy buses.

         22                 So, we're going to get at the facts

         23  and let's work on the issue here, and we should lay

         24  it out on the table, because by laying out the

         25  issues on the table, that's when we can really deal
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          2  with the issues, and that's why we have to have this

          3  kind of public forum and public hearing.

          4                 The issue, obviously, is as

          5  Councilman Addabbo said, a revenue issue. It costs

          6  the MTA a lot of money to eliminate the tolls. So,

          7  let's lay it out on the table like it really is.

          8  It's not about bond covenants, it's about the MTA

          9  not wanting to lose the money. So, we have to figure

         10  out how to get the money elsewhere. Ultimately, it's

         11  an issue of fairness and equity, as Council Member

         12  Addabbo points out. There is no other toll in the

         13  whole City of 8.2 million people where people have

         14  to pay a toll to get from one part of a borough to

         15  another part of a borough. The same borough. It's

         16  not right. And it does hamper the economic

         17  development, and it prevents jobs from being created

         18  right in this area for the people living here.

         19                 So, let's forget the legal mumbo

         20  jumbo, and let's get to the real issue. The real

         21  issue is how do we find that money to replace the

         22  revenues lost, if we got rid of those tolls? The

         23  only way we're going to be able to deal with it is

         24  by addressing the issue head-on.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you.
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          2  Just one other question. I'm going to look forward

          3  to seeing the details on the bond covenants, exactly

          4  how -- and while you're at it, if you could explain

          5  the details on the mortgage recording tax, and how

          6  that is used as part of a refund, that's something

          7  which will be of interest to all of us.

          8                 But I really just wanted to take a

          9  step back and ask the question about how the MTA

         10  makes a determination that there is a community that

         11  needs more bus service, for example? I mean, you

         12  explained a little bit about train service, and you

         13  talk about Lefferts and you talk about balancing

         14  that out, but what is the process for the MTA to

         15  look at a community and say, this is a community

         16  that actually needs more bus service, how do you

         17  make that determination?

         18                 MS. SWEENEY: Fortunately I have an

         19  expert here.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Good.

         21                 MR. SILVERMAN: (Not identified for

         22  the record.) Certainly I'll respond to your

         23  question. But before I tell you about you plan

         24  largely new services, I think it's again important

         25  to realize that what we inherited was significantly
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          2  broken or a system not in good repair, so our

          3  mission and our fundamental short-term issue was to

          4  get that to a state of good repair. We're not there.

          5  We're going to get there, but we're not there yet.

          6                 The question you asked about how you

          7  plan, what we do is we basically, and will be, and

          8  this is not a process we have done yet because we

          9  are a very young organization that is trying to fix

         10  what's broken first, but we would apply the same

         11  guidelines with the New York City Transit uses,

         12  which talks about spacing between routes, how much

         13  ridership you have. I don't have those guidelines

         14  with me right now. We could forward them to you.

         15  They are the guidelines that relate to routes facing

         16  infrequency and ridership and all the demographic

         17  and geographic issues that determine that.

         18                 But the far more important issue, and

         19  not because I'm trying to dump your question at all,

         20  is to get the existing system to run better. And we

         21  think we can do a lot better job with a little bit

         22  more time. We've only had a year. But that's the

         23  fundamental, you don't want to start putting out

         24  more service on streets when the existing streets

         25  don't have the right service and you don't have the
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          2  depots up to speed to support them.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay. Well,

          4  the answer to the question is that there are

          5  guidelines.

          6                 MR. SILVERMAN: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: We'd like

          8  to see the guidelines, for one. And there is no

          9  doubt that in a year fixing the broken system is not

         10  the, it's not an easy thing to do. But I guess

         11  really the question is this is a community which

         12  clearly needs more, better service, and so along

         13  with those guidelines, what would be useful for us

         14  is to see an analysis from you, I mean because we

         15  know that there is going to be an ongoing discussion

         16  with regard to, with the New York Metropolitan

         17  Transit Council about the need for additional routes

         18  and additional transportation options here. But an

         19  analysis from you about how this community fits

         20  within those guidelines because it seems to me that

         21  it's very likely that within the context of needs

         22  for new service, Southern Queens will likely fall

         23  very, very high on the list, and will likely meet

         24  many of your criteria.

         25                 But why don't you send us those
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          2  guidelines so we actually can see them and be able

          3  to evaluate for ourselves?

          4                 MR. SILVERMAN: We will get you those.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. I want to

          8  thank the MTA officials for joining us tonight.

          9  You're in Broad Channel. I got confused with the

         10  streets, okay? And we look forward to getting more

         11  responses, and let's figure out a way, a way to get

         12  rid of these tolls, because they're just not fair.

         13                 All right, thank you.

         14                 MS. SWEENEY: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We want to invite

         16  members of the Citizens' Advisory Council to the

         17  MTA, as well as the New York City Transit Riders

         18  Council, Andrew Albert and Ellyn Shannon.

         19                 And this panel will be followed by

         20  our Community Board Chairs, Frank Gulluscio, Betty

         21  Braton and Delores Orr.

         22                 I would like to ask, now that the

         23  agencies are off the hot seat, we do need to ask

         24  everybody to abide by a succinct time limit.

         25                 Andrew, do you want to go first?
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          2                 MR. ALBERT: Sure.

          3                 Good evening, Chairman Liu, Speaker

          4  Quinn, Council Members Addabbo and Garodnick.

          5                 When I was told about this hearing, I

          6  was told it was transportation issues concerning all

          7  of Southern Queens. It has sounded thus far, like

          8  it's largely been a Rockaways and Broad Channel

          9  discussion. What I wanted to present to you is not

         10  exactly that, but it does greatly affect South

         11  Queens, so as long as I made the trip out to Broad

         12  Channel, I thought I would give it to you anyway.

         13                 You should know that the Transit

         14  Riders Council was the brain trust, I suppose was

         15  the word, behind the City Ticket Program for the

         16  Long Island Railroad MetroNorth whereby weekends now

         17  everybody can ride within City limits those commuter

         18  trains for a flat fee of $3.00. That's approximately

         19  up to a buck and a half to a buck seventy-five less

         20  than you would pay ordinarily. We felt that those

         21  commuter trains were running through the boroughs

         22  not really serving them, and we thought that there

         23  was a program we should give you that would give you

         24  access to those trains at a much more reasonable

         25  cost.
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          2                 We have envisioned that this program

          3  would be all off-peak hours but at the time the deal

          4  was made to do it just weekends. We hope to expand

          5  that, by the way. I don't know how many people are

          6  aware of this, but Long Island Railroad has a plan

          7  to bring east side access trains into Grand Central

          8  and they've got funding and that plan is moving

          9  ahead and everybody is aware of that. There is also

         10  a plan in which we do not favor, which we think is a

         11  collosal waste of money, but there is a plan to

         12  bring a JFK Lower Manhattan railway to the system as

         13  well. Under either of those two scenarios, through

         14  service from the Long Island Railroad to Brooklyn,

         15  would cease, and you would have to change at Jamaica

         16  for a shuttle train to Brooklyn.

         17                 Right now we are spending a lot of

         18  money to upgrade the Atlantic viaduct along Atlantic

         19  Avenue and Brooklyn, and we believe that a better

         20  way to serve South Queens with the subway service

         21  that has been promised for so long would be to

         22  convert the Atlantic branch of the Long Island

         23  railroad to a Transit line and bring it down to

         24  Springfield Gardens in Southeast Queens. We would

         25  push for the restoration of the Woodhaven station
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          2  along 99th Street and Atlantic Avenue, and rebuild

          3  the Springfield Garden Station in Southeast Queens.

          4                 I have already asked some people at

          5  MTA to do preliminary ridership numbers on what such

          6  a branch, what such a line would mean to South

          7  Queens, and they said that they thought the

          8  ridership figures, preliminary ridership figures

          9  were very, very good.

         10                 This is a far more effective use of

         11  these tracks and this Long Island Railroad branch

         12  than the current basically hourly or every other

         13  hour service that is now provided. We think this

         14  would be a boom to Transit and Southeast Queens, and

         15  we just wanted to present this plan to you tonight.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         17  Andrew.

         18                 Thank you. Ellyn, thank you for being

         19  so concise. And I know that you work very closely

         20  with Andrew, so thank you for being at this hearing.

         21                 Our Community Board Chairs, Frank

         22  Gulluscio, Betty Braton and Deloris Orr. To be

         23  followed by a panel consisting of John Shapiro,

         24  Eugene Birch and Warren Gardner, and Jackie Wilson.

         25                 SPEAKER QUINN: Just before she
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          2  starts, I want to thank Betty, in particular, who

          3  was with us last night at York College, who came out

          4  to a meeting we had about police community

          5  relations. So, I just wanted to thank her for being

          6  so, so active.

          7                 MR. BRATON: My name is Betty Braton,

          8  and I'm the Chairperson for Community Board 10. Our

          9  board area begins just up the road on the other side

         10  of the bridge.

         11                 I'd like to thank Speaker Quinn,

         12  Committee Chairman Liu, our own Councilman Joe

         13  Addabbo, for scheduling this meeting here at the

         14  32nd Council District so our residents would have an

         15  opportunity to share their many concerns on

         16  transportation issues. We're here to learn some of

         17  the things that we're learning this evening. I'd

         18  like to thank Council Member Garodnick for trekking

         19  out here as well.

         20                 Earlier this week, Mayor Bloomberg

         21  released the Administration's 2030 plan. A lot of

         22  the attention right now is on his proposal to try

         23  and institute some type of congestion pricing

         24  program to ease traffic in Manhattan.

         25                 That plan will be much debated by all
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          2  the stakeholders on this rocky road to either

          3  implementation or non-implementation. Until all the

          4  pici little details are available, I don't know what

          5  the position on it will eventually be, but this

          6  discussion, which has already started on the

          7  concept, does put some focus on many of our concerns

          8  out here in Southern Queens.

          9                 One is simply that we drive because

         10  our public transportation in this part of Queens has

         11  historically, as you've heard, been lacking and

         12  unreliable. That has improved to some degree since

         13  the takeover of the private bus lines, but there's a

         14  long way to go. We need to expand and further

         15  improve bus service.

         16                 For example, many of the residents in

         17  the South Ozone Park area will attend. For them,

         18  reaching the subway connection requires a bus trip.

         19  We need to improve access to the subway for them, as

         20  well as to improve the accessibility of the Liberty

         21  Avenue el stations to people who have difficulty

         22  climbing the stairs.

         23                 For the most part, people in the

         24  Ozone Park, Richmond Hill and each area of Northwood

         25  (phonetic) have easier access to the subways than
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          2  South Ozone Park does, for it's a long trip all

          3  through Brooklyn before it reaches Manhattan.

          4                 A number of years ago the Train to

          5  the Plane, although aimed at airport travel, ran as

          6  an express train from Howard Beach to Jay Street

          7  Brooklyn and then made five stops in Manhattan below

          8  60th Street. It was regularly used by many of our

          9  residents, who willingly paid the additional fee to

         10  have the express service.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Betty, thank you.

         12  Please wrap up.

         13                 MS. BRATON: I'm almost to the end.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.

         15                 MS. BRATON: We feel a similar type of

         16  express subway service should be implemented and

         17  that potential moves to improvement in express bus

         18  service should be added.

         19                 Another issue for Queens residents is

         20  that for most of us, although the commute to

         21  Manhattan is lengthy, it's often been easier for us

         22  than getting from one part of Queens to another.

         23  That poses a particular problem for our high school

         24  students who attend, or desire to attend schools in

         25  other parts of Queens. It can either be localized
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          2  within communities, as Councilman Addabbo well

          3  knows. Anyone who lives in the vicinity of his

          4  office and Howard Beach would like to go to the

          5  Cross Bay shopping strip, has no public

          6  transportation to get there.

          7                 I know Frank is going to talk about

          8  some of the Crossbay Woodhaven --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think he's next.

         10                 MS. BRATON: And thank you.

         11                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         13  Betty.

         14                 MS. ORR: Good evening. My name is

         15  Delores Orr, and I'm Chair of Community Board 14. I

         16  would like to thank the Speaker Quinn, and

         17  Councilman Liu for coming out this evening, and the

         18  other members of the Committee.

         19                 I want to throw out a number to you -

         20  5,000. That is how many additional housing units we

         21  need developed in Rockaway and Broad Channel over

         22  the next five years. Five-thousand. There is 800

         23  proposed for Edgemere, 2,200 for Arverne by the Sea,

         24  1,500 for Arverne East, and we estimate

         25  approximately 1,000 of private units developed.
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          2  There is not a bus, subway or road in Broad Channel

          3  in Rockaway that can handle that additional usage.

          4                 What we need to do, looking at

          5  PlanNew York City, the Mayor talks about wanting new

          6  commuter rail access to Manhattan.  On the Rockaway

          7  Beach, Long Island Railroad branch will do that for

          8  us. If it could not be done because of capacity at

          9  Penn Station, so how is the Mayor creating this new

         10  commuter rail into Penn Station, why isn't it coming

         11  from Rockaway?

         12                 He also pointed out expanding transit

         13  access to the underserved areas. I think everyone

         14  agrees that we are an under-served area. Without

         15  extending the Q22 bus to the Far Rockaway Long

         16  Island Railroad Station so people can get the

         17  railroad from Far Rockaway.

         18                 It's also about improving and

         19  expanding bus service and initiating extending bus

         20  rapid transit routes has gotten much better,

         21  absolutely since Spring Bus Lines are gone, but

         22  there's much more to do. We need to increase express

         23  bus service to Midtown, we need service to downtown,

         24  we need weekend service. We need to also extend the

         25  235 bus along Beach Channel Drive to 108th Street
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          2  and Rockaway Beach Boulevard for a more direct

          3  connection. We need every single train station in

          4  Rockaway to be ADA accessible. There's four flights

          5  of stairs, we need elevators or escalators.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Delores.

          7                 Frank. Once again, if we have any

          8  written testimony that people would like to submit

          9  then please do so.

         10                 Let me acknowledge for the record

         11  that we have testimony from Rockaway Park Estates,

         12  Director Jonathan Miller. He has submitted written

         13  testimony.

         14                 Frank, please proceed.

         15                 MR. GULLUSCIO: Thank you, Councilman

         16  Liu, Speaker Quinn. My name is Frank Gulluscio, and

         17  I'm the District Manager of Community Board 6,

         18  serving Forest Hills and Rego Park North. Here we

         19  go. What affects you guys, affects us. And it's not

         20  about the railroad.

         21                 I'm also a resident of New York City

         22  Council Member Joe Addabbo's District 32. In

         23  addition, I belong to the Queens County Traffic

         24  Safety Board, appointed by our Borough President

         25  Helen Marshall.
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          2                 Thank you for coming to our

          3  neighborhood, yes, our neighborhood, where

          4  transportation, as you already know, is a major

          5  issue. In a City like New York we need ambitious

          6  goals to make us safer with our transportation

          7  issues, along with strong, as you said it before,

          8  Councilman, accountability.

          9                 Although fatalities and accidents are

         10  showing a decrease from years ago, for example South

         11  Queens accidents are down 3%, a lot still must be

         12  done.

         13                 For example, the volume of traffic

         14  from the Rockaways to Queens Boulevard, it could

         15  take you hours to get up from there. If you don't

         16  make the lights in the morning, forget about it.

         17                 Visible speed limits need to be

         18  posted, betting timing, computerized traffic

         19  signals, they're all needed, an it's time they

         20  become a reality. Let's stop talking about this.

         21                 Presently Community Board 6 has

         22  requested a traffic study from Union Turnpike to

         23  Queens Boulevard. Why? Because of the volume of

         24  traffic coming from Rockaway, Ozone Park, Howard

         25  Beach, back and forth.
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          2                 From my conversations with other

          3  District Managers, we should take a closer look at

          4  uniform signage, clearer signage and a strong, long

          5  look at off-route trucks clogging our streets,

          6  particularly in the Ozone Park area.

          7                 Most of all, we should re-educate the

          8  driver, re-educate the senior and, of course,

          9  educate the children with transportation and

         10  pedestrian concerns.

         11                 Traffic calming initiatives should be

         12  implemented easily, it shouldn't be like pulling

         13  teeth. We have proven that they are a success, let's

         14  do it.

         15                 Roadway treatments around schools, in

         16  particular speed humps and pavement markings, should

         17  be the norm, not the exception.

         18                 Let me take my hat off as District

         19  Manager and say as a resident in this district, I

         20  strongly support and recommend, yes, we'll have to

         21  get to Rockaway Beach on the old train to the plane,

         22  more buses, and, of course, absolutely ferry

         23  service, because we need it and we need it now. Not

         24  tomorrow, not next year, we need it now.

         25                 Thank you so much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Thank you

          3  so much for testifying today. Joanne Shapiro, Eugene

          4  Burch, Warren Gardner and Jackie Wilson. To be

          5  followed by a panel consisting of Lew Simon, Grace

          6  Macloske, Walter Stecher, Donna Gilmartin.

          7                 Please identify yourself when you

          8  testify.

          9                 Ms. Shapiro, please proceed.

         10                 MS. SHAPIRO: Good evening. My name is

         11  Joanne Shapiro, I'm Chief of Staff for Assemblywoman

         12  Audrey Pfeifer. Assemblywoman Pfeifer regrets that

         13  she couldn't be here this evening, but today is the

         14  legislative session in Albany and that's where she

         15  is.

         16                 But, you know, I think to read the

         17  prepared statement that I have would be redundant.

         18  Everyone knows the problems that we have in Rockaway

         19  - we have no public transportation. We're blessed

         20  with the ever-famous A train, which is truly nothing

         21  to sing about. But you know what? Some of the things

         22  that I heard are truly disturbing. The A train

         23  doesn't serve our needs. It is not capable of

         24  serving our needs, we learned today from Ms.

         25  Sweeney. There is no more capacity. We cannot
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          2  increase A train service, and that is the only train

          3  service that services that area.

          4                 So, the solution, although not

          5  simple, is to open up the old Rockaway Beach line.

          6  Where there is a will, there is a way. And I'm

          7  thrilled, what I heard about the ferries, when

          8  you're thinking about transportation for Rockaway or

          9  Channel, Howard Beach, Ozone Park, this entire part

         10  of Queens seeing water because ferries are really

         11  the answer. We're thrilled at what we heard.

         12                 I have to say that the bond covenant

         13  has been proven it can be retired. We've done it, we

         14  did it through the resident program. I have file

         15  upon file upon file upon file. Again, where there is

         16  a will, there is a way, it's already been done, it

         17  can be done, so that we're confident of.

         18                 I just have to say that we learned

         19  this weekend the greening of Manhattan is the black

         20  and blueing of the outer boroughs. Eight dollars a

         21  car, it should not be allowed. I thank you. It is

         22  obvious you are committed to making a change. We're

         23  frustrated because we haven't seen change. We look

         24  forward to working with you to ensure there is a

         25  change. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Ms.

          3  Shapiro.

          4                 Thank you. Mr. Burch.

          5                 MR. BURCH: Good evening, all. My name

          6  is Gene Burch, I represent Senator Serf Maltese,

          7  which he's up in Albany today, sorry he's not here.

          8  But one of our offices is right here on Crossbay

          9  Boulevard, right over Blockbuster, that's part of

         10  our district. And you have to go through Howard

         11  Beach to get to Broad Channel. We understand the

         12  problem, and when I come here in the morning, I live

         13  in Glendale. It will take me a half an hour in the

         14  morning to get here and in the middle of the day

         15  when it is not rush hour, I can get home in ten

         16  minutes. So, the Senator is behind the residents to

         17  get all these improvements done, and he wants to

         18  thank the City Council for coming to Broad Channel.

         19                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         21                 Mr. Gardner.

         22                 MR. GARDNER: Good evening, everyone.

         23  My name is Warren Gardner, I'm District Director for

         24  State Senator Malcolm Smith. Good evening, Madam

         25  Speaker, and Council Members. Thank you for this
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          2  opportunity to speak to you.

          3                 Briefly, the Senator wanted me to

          4  come and just let you all know that he is in full

          5  support of this community, as you all know, and he

          6  shares, too, in the frustration that we all have.

          7                 You know, we all know that the needs,

          8  we do need round-the-clock bus service, we need more

          9  trains, we need ferry service. And as far as the

         10  NYMTC study, we've been looking at it for some time

         11  now and the Senator also wanted to let you know that

         12  there is possibly $500,000 or so that is set aside

         13  for the consultant once they come on board to

         14  conduct a study but we just have to get them on

         15  board. But once they're on, there is money available

         16  for the study to be conducted, and just to reiterate

         17  what everyone else has been saying --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Don't. You don't

         19  need to reiterate.

         20                 MR. GARDNER: Okay. We need this and

         21  we're going to make it happen.

         22                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you so much.

         24                 Mr. Wilson.

         25                 MR. WILSON: Good evening, Council
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          2  members. I will take this opportunity to also thank

          3  you for the work you're doing, because this is my

          4  first time, seeing how well the Transportation

          5  members all work. I'm representing Shirley Huntley

          6  of the 10th Senatorial District. As you know, she's

          7  doing her work up in Albany. She is in full support

          8  of the transportation, and she feels that everyone

          9  should have the opportunity to ride the bus, and she

         10  expressed the feeling that you are doing a good job.

         11  Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         13  Thanks for joining us today.

         14                 Our next panel, Lew Simon, Grace

         15  McCloske, Walter Stecher, and Donna Gilmartin.

         16                 Let me note that I really do ask

         17  everyone to abide by the two-minute limit. We have

         18  about another 70 people signed up to speak. So, at

         19  this point we're projected to be out of here by

         20  11:30, if everybody sticks to the two-minute limit.

         21  So, please. Thank you.

         22                 MR. SIMON: Good evening, ladies and

         23  gentlemen, Council Speaker Quinn, Chairman John Liu,

         24  Members of the City Council, Committee and City

         25  agencies, I am Democratic District Leader Lew M.
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          2  Simon. I represent the 23rd Assembly District, part

          3  B., which takes in Rockaway, Broad Channel, Breezy

          4  Point, part of Howard Beach and Ozone Park. Tonight

          5  is a historic night, and I tip my hat to Speaker

          6  Quinn who came to our Democratic Club on November

          7  30th and agreed there would be a hearing here.

          8                 Today I stand before you and I'm

          9  looking for your support to reactivate the old

         10  Rockaway Beach Line and the Long Island Railroad.

         11                 Let's hear it. (applause). This was

         12  in our community to 1962. Imagine, 32 minutes to

         13  Penn Station. Imagine from Ozone Park, 18 minutes to

         14  Penn Station. Recently they just gave all these

         15  millions and millions of dollars, ten times more

         16  than what we need, to the Second Avenue Line, to

         17  serve 30 blocks. Shame on them. We can't have ours?

         18  They shouldn't have theirs. We have gone on record

         19  through the years that we have supported the Second

         20  Avenue line. We're not taking it back, but we want

         21  the old Rockaway Beach line as well.

         22                 We also speak about the abomination

         23  of the A train. Have you ever tried to ride it? Come

         24  ride it with us. It's a real joke. Many, many nights

         25  when we come back, let's say I go down to City
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          2  Council to speak or City Hall, when I try to come

          3  back from Chambers Street, it's a joke. First I've

          4  got to grab any train I grab down Euclid Avenue.

          5  Then from Euclid Avenue I get another train to

          6  Rockaway Boulevard, back to Broad Channel, back to

          7  my home in Rockaway Park. Talk about four-letter

          8  words, over two hours to get home. That's

          9  ridiculous.

         10                 Manhattan express buses - we are the

         11  only community in Queens that does not have express

         12  buses running until at least 1:00 a.m. and on

         13  weekends. Shame on the MTA. To shame, to shame, to

         14  shame. We are no longer a nine to five workforce. We

         15  are expanding. People work all hours of the day and

         16  night. It is most important that you set a committee

         17  together of residents like myself who speak to the

         18  community.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Lew, your passion is

         20  unparalleled. Thank you very much. Thank you.

         21                 Grace McCloske.

         22                 MS. McCLOSKE: All right, I come from

         23  Downtown Rockaway Point, one of the many villages.

         24  I'm an old-time school teacher and administrator.

         25  Raise your hand if you're from the Rockaways, Broad
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          2  Channel. Raise your hands if you're from Manhattan.

          3  You probably for the DOT. Christine, you're invited

          4  to bring all these people -- I love you, John Liu,

          5  you're good -- to my deck to see how the Department

          6  of Transportation has failed me. Anthony Weiner

          7  promised me two or three elections ago, but you can

          8  make him do this for us. I had a 93-year-old mother

          9  mowed down leaving her traffic light.

         10                 I'm here tonight, because Steven, my

         11  elected officials in Breezy Point and the

         12  Administrative offices are totally irresponsible and

         13  unresponsive to the senior community. I was

         14  President of Golden Age, Vice President of AOH, you

         15  name it. I've been to school for nothing. The Bishop

         16  paid, the Cardinal paid, little smart kid from

         17  Brooklyn, okay? Christine, you know Irish red heads,

         18  we're so shy, my mother came at 16, she has five

         19  sisters, the 95 year olds dancing at a wedding I'll

         20  be at on June 15th. I speak today, I'm a breast

         21  cancer survivor, a caretaker, my mother couldn't pay

         22  her rent without me or her fees. We spend all our

         23  money on the children and that's fine, but I've been

         24  trying for years -- I've talked to them in the

         25  office, it's like talking to the Dunny Mill County
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          2  Council (phonetic), how about a lift bus so people

          3  could get to 22 Bus, at Kings Plaza and 116. Coming

          4  home from Brooklyn College without my car. I had to

          5  go 116th and pay $8 for a cab. I was working. I'm

          6  now on Medicare Part D. You know what they charge?

          7  That's next, Joe. But I want to thank Audrey and

          8  Lucifer over here, my old fiance' and Joe and

          9  Malcolm, and all the democrats that say we're

         10  republicans but we can't elect anyone.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Ms.

         12  McCloske. Thank you.

         13                 MS. McCLOSKE: Come to my house,

         14  Christine. I'll show you the problems.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Donna Gilmartin.

         16                 MS. GILMARTIN: Council members,

         17  Speaker, thank you very much for inviting me to

         18  speak. It's good to see all of you again. I will be

         19  very, very brief. I am Donna Gilmartin. I'm the

         20  President of the Locust Grove Civic Association up

         21  in Ozone Park, South Ozone Park. Our problems up

         22  there are the increase of truck traffic on our local

         23  streets. We're in between a Home Depot, and JFK

         24  International Airport. We are getting from small

         25  trucks to traffic trailer trucks coming down our
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          2  local streets. And we're getting overwhelmed with

          3  them. This really needs to be addressed. Not only

          4  are they driving, they're also parking and we've

          5  addressed the Department of Buildings, once again

          6  they're parking all over.

          7                 SPEAKER QUINN: The DOB trucks?

          8                 MS. GILMARTIN: No, because sometimes

          9  they're parking overnight on the streets, in the

         10  driveways, we're getting bombarded with trucks all

         11  different times is the case.

         12                 My other issue is the Aqueduct Train

         13  Station is in total disrepair. It's horrible. It

         14  really needs to be reworked, and also, the approach

         15  to it, most people walk there, you can't get a bus

         16  to go there. Most people approach it by walking, and

         17  in between you and the traffic going 60 miles an

         18  hour is maybe three blades of grass. That's it. So,

         19  it really needs to be addressed on the approach that

         20  the road is extremely dangerous.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you so much,

         24  Ms. Gilmartin.

         25                 I forgot to ask the next to get
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          2  ready. Sorry about that.

          3                 Sara Berger, Joseph Hartigan, Dorothy

          4  Williams-Periera, and Stanley Shannon. Please come

          5  up. And let me thank the Mayor's Office

          6  representatives for still being here with us to hear

          7  directly.

          8                 Our next panel will consist of

          9  Catherine Schmidlein, Dwight Naime, Paul Garcia and

         10  Renee Radenberg.

         11                 SPEAKER QUINN: And if I could just

         12  ask folks, on the cards, if you can make sure

         13  whether you testify or not, you try to fill in with

         14  as much information as possible. Also, if you have

         15  e-mail, please give us that because we want to be

         16  able to stay in touch, but we can only stay in touch

         17  if you fill out the cards solely, and if you have

         18  e-mail, let us know that too. So, thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Ms.

         20  Berger.

         21                 MS. BERGER: My car and I are ladies.

         22  Between us, we get a very rich obligation in life,

         23  we can only last as long as our moving parts move.

         24  Increasingly, I, and many of my colleagues, depend

         25  on public transportation. Which is pretty good, I
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          2  love the new buses. However, for years I have been

          3  told that the reason we get such poor service on the

          4  A train is, one, because it's the longest line in

          5  the City. I don't know who would buy that. And two,

          6  we didn't know beyond it. So, the poorer the service

          7  gets, the fewer the people ride it, the more they

          8  can tell us that we don't need it.

          9                 I'd like to see better

         10  transportation. I didn't realize we only get four

         11  trains an hour. No wonder we don't get many people

         12  riding it.

         13                 I would cheerfully not use my car. In

         14  fact, I don't use it to go to the City. It takes me

         15  two hours to get to Times Square from the time I get

         16  on the bus, not from the time I get up there to

         17  wait.

         18                 I want to see us get better

         19  transportation on existing lines. I want to see us

         20  get the use of the old railroad tracks. If we own

         21  the right of way, we don't have to buy it. We have

         22  to get some of the people who have moved into it

         23  without any legal way to it to get them off so that

         24  we can put the tracks back to service. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Commander
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          2  Berger.

          3                 Joe Hartigan.

          4                 MR. HARTIGAN: My name is Joe Hartigan

          5  and I'm a little bit of a ferry advocate and

          6  transportation advocate. I've heard a lot of nice

          7  things here today, but one thing that bothers me, a

          8  couple of things that bother me, the annual

          9  operating budget of the Staten Island Ferry is $3

         10  million and it's free. They also get 400 express

         11  buses. $300,000 for a ferry subsidy is junk change.

         12  It's one-quarter of one percent of the City's $55

         13  billion budget.

         14                 The tolls that are collected, the

         15  Marine Parkway Bridge and the Crossway Bridge, total

         16  about $16 million. We can't even get our own money

         17  back. It's ridiculous.

         18                 The other thing, too, is right now

         19  the old Manhattan Development Corporation is going

         20  to subsidize a ferry from Yonkers down to New York

         21  City for $4.6 million. What do they have to do with

         22  New York City?

         23                 Also, there is no evacuation going

         24  from Manhattan if something happens. The thing is,

         25  all I would like to see Rockaway get is a fair
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          2  share. The EDC right now is putting on an RFP to buy

          3  new ferry boats for operators subsidy, shuttle

          4  service. I'll read it to you: "Assistance and

          5  development of additional ferry landings and

          6  development-related infrastructure. Assistance in

          7  the acquisition of vessels of new routes and New

          8  York Harbor. Assistance of costs associated..."

          9  that's a subsidy --"... with start-up and initial

         10  operation of services. Assistance in the provision

         11  of connecting bus or van service."

         12                 This is all in Manhattan. Not for

         13  Rockaway. When is it going to be our turn? Thank

         14  you.

         15                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         17  gentlemen.

         18                 Dorothy.

         19                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: My name is

         20  Dorothy Williams-Pereira, and this is 2007, 50 years

         21  since I graduated from Parkway High School, and I've

         22  seen changes to the community, and they're not all

         23  for the best. When I went to Hunter College, it was

         24  an easier ride than it is now, and that was at the

         25  end of 1950s.
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          2                 This is ridiculous. In the first

          3  place, the MTA does not abide by the ADA for

          4  disabled as required. It is unbelievable how much

          5  effort it takes for someone to get up the Mott

          6  Avenue staircases. The elevator that was promised,

          7  the elevators and escalators that were promised to

          8  this area a long time ago have not been built.

          9                 The pollution in Newtown Creek and

         10  the Jamaica Bay are outrageous. I'm on the Advisory

         11  Committee for the DEP, you would not believe how

         12  polluted this is, and it's got to clear up.

         13                 We need to have more transportation.

         14  We need the ferries and the buses right now, and

         15  South Jamaica, Southeast Jamaica on the mainland,

         16  they need transportation that's more adequate as

         17  well. The community there has supported us and we

         18  supported them for many things, and we should

         19  continue.

         20                 One thing I'd like you all to do, if

         21  you want to risk your lives, is take the 113 from

         22  Archery Parsons (phonetic) down through Snake Road,

         23  also known as Woodthrow (phonetic). You think your

         24  life is in danger yet, wait until your feet are

         25  falling in the swamp. It is unbelievable. It is
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          2  outrageous. We need all this, and we need the

          3  Rockaway Beach line to be put out again.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Dorothy.

          5                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: And the trucks

          6  have to go on the rail.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Dorothy.

          8                 Catherine Schmidlein, Dwight Naime,

          9  Paul Garica Renee Radenberg, and they'll be followed

         10  by a panel consisting of Palmer Doyle, Gerard

         11  Romski, Kathleen Hanratty and Anthony Miles. And we

         12  want to welcome John Hall of the 100th Precinct.

         13  Thank you for being here. Please proceed. Identify

         14  yourself for the record.

         15                 MS. RADENBERG: My name is Renee

         16  Radenberg. I am a proud owner of a house here in

         17  Rockaway, and I am a commuter to Manhattan. It takes

         18  me over two hours to get to work in Upper Manhattan,

         19  where a lot of New Yorkers now work because of 9/11.

         20                 It was very concerning to me for the

         21  MTA telling us that our ridership is down. I'd like

         22  to know, while I appreciate the Committee, which I'm

         23  very thankful that you came here, is to ask them how

         24  they are quantifying that. When the fact is our

         25  subway train stations are horrendous, we have to
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          2  have an umbrella, underneath the --

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

          4  AUDIENCE: Staircase.

          5                 MS. RADENBERG: Thanks. On the

          6  platforms. Nobody has ever taken into account how

          7  many people, including myself, drive from Rockaway

          8  to Ozone Park along the A train to get the train. I

          9  take it because then it drops my commute an hour and

         10  a half, it's been over two hours, because I can't

         11  get the express train from Upper Manhattan, 'cause

         12  it starts at 59th Street. So, it takes me every

         13  single night, if I come from Rockaway, to change at

         14  Broad Channel.

         15                 The other thing is, they should be

         16  tracking the amount of cars that come along every

         17  single day. Go to Ozone Park after 5:00 and see how

         18  much cars are coming out of there because people

         19  from Rockaway go up there, and Broad Channel go up

         20  there.

         21                 The other thing is, look at the 53

         22  express bus now in the morning because you have

         23  additional stops. The amount of people that get on

         24  that bus to get off at Rockaway Boulevard, it's a

         25  huge amount of people.
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          2                 So, there is areas where we could

          3  have additional ridership that they're not looking

          4  at.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 MS. SCHMIDLEIN: Hi. My name is Kate

          8  Schmidlein, and I live at Breezy Point, which is the

          9  furthest western part of the peninsula. In order to

         10  get into the City for me, I have to drive up to the

         11  initial parking lot on 116th Street and take the A

         12  train.

         13                 Now, the other day, last Tuesday

         14  actually, I had an eye doctor's appointment in the

         15  City, and I left here at 9:00 and got there at

         16  11:30. Yes, I took the A train, there's only four

         17  expresses, I do believe, in the morning. So, there

         18  are no expresses, so you have to take it to Broad

         19  Channel. When you get off at Broad Channel, then you

         20  have to wait for an A train to go into the City,

         21  that's coming from Far Rockaway or Lefferts. When

         22  you get into the City, get off at Broadway/Nassau,

         23  and then just to go to 79th Street, Manhattan, it's

         24  taking the 4 or 5 to 42nd Street, get off at 42nd

         25  and take the 6 train to 77th. Can you believe this?
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          2  Four trains.

          3                 And then I try to make it later,

          4  because until 3:00, then you're going to stand on

          5  the platform for hours trying to get a train back

          6  here to Rockaway. As a matter of fact, I said to my

          7  doctor the other day, I love you, I mean otherwise

          8  it's eight trains for me to get to see you. Thank

          9  God it's only once a year.

         10                 Another part that I find very

         11  disturbing, though, is you know, when you don't get

         12  those four trains that come into our park in the

         13  morning or the ones in the evening, then you have to

         14  take the shuttle to Broad Channel. Now, coming home

         15  it's the same thing, but you pass the shuttle and

         16  sitting up there waiting at Broad Channel and I pass

         17  the other one at Howard Beach, and Howard Beach,

         18  understanding that the platform was packed, and the

         19  shuttle was supposed to follow the A train. It

         20  doesn't. And sometimes, I mean you're standing, it's

         21  20 degrees.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Ms.

         23  Schmidlein.

         24                 MS. SCHMIDLEIN: Thank you. Thank you.

         25                 SPEAKER QUINN: I just want to dare
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          2  say, I think that mail on the Pony Express had less

          3  transfers than your trip from Breezy Point to the

          4  eye doctor.

          5                 MS. SCHMIDLEIN: And you know what? I

          6  should have mentioned, too, you probably won't

          7  believe it, but I am a senior citizen.

          8                 SPEAKER QUINN: With two women

          9  talking, you're out of luck. Go ahead, keep going.

         10                 MR. GARCIA: I'm Paul Garcia.  I'm a

         11  senior play person (sic) with American Airlines, as

         12  well as the owner of West End Realty, so I happen to

         13  live and work in two of the largest vast historic

         14  communities, and that is down at the airport and

         15  Rockaway.

         16                 There is a lot of congestion in

         17  Howard Beach and Broad Channel, a lot of this can be

         18  limited. I would like to take carrier, doing the

         19  change at Broad Channel. Inclement weather, you're

         20  going to get rained or snowed on.

         21                 It's not an ADA stop. If your train

         22  just went one more stop, and this could be

         23  implemented within weeks, went one more stop,

         24  through inclement weather, people who need to use

         25  the elevator to get out of the weather while they
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          2  went to the next train, would make it easier for

          3  people who go to work at the airport, it would

          4  eliminate congestion, it would eliminate pollution,

          5  and it's a simple fix. It's a quick fix. One more

          6  stop. It used to stop at Howard Beach, and that's

          7  where you do the changeover. For some reason they

          8  moved it back to Broad Channel. The economics. But I

          9  don't think the economics did that great.

         10                 Take some of the toll money from the

         11  bridge and put it into that. Thank you.

         12                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you so much,

         14  Mr. Garcia.

         15                 Palmer Doyle, Gerard Romski, Cathleen

         16  Penradi and Anthony Miles. To be followed by Cynthia

         17  Hernandez, Walter Stecher, Ann Oswiecimski, and

         18  Donald Minor.

         19                 MR. DOYLE: My name is Palmer Doyle. I

         20  want to take this time to thank the DOT with the

         21  speed with which they put up"no parking" signs.

         22  That's about all they're good for.

         23                 I would also like to say that whoever

         24  is responsible for the road work that's been going

         25  on through the Rockaways should be fired tomorrow.
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          2  We just had a terrible Nor'easter, we had terrible

          3  flooding, we had a double high tide, could have

          4  caused evacuation, but we would have had a problem

          5  because our two evacuation routes are being paved. I

          6  kid you not.

          7                 I demand that we have ferry service.

          8  Joe Hartigan has done the work. He's handed the

          9  politicians a gift wrapped package on ferry service,

         10  every ounce of information. Joe Hartigan has worked

         11  eight years religiously on that. We pay the tolls,

         12  we subsidize mass transit. We can't use mass

         13  transit, so use our tolls to pay for our ferry

         14  service. We demand the ferry service. Enough is

         15  enough. (applause). I've seen very little get done

         16  here.

         17                 The people of Staten Island are

         18  treated like first class passengers on a flight,

         19  we're treated to the back seat of a crop duster.

         20  Enough is enough already. Please.

         21                 I'm trying not to be facetious, but

         22  it's very hard living in this neighborhood because

         23  we're treated like third class citizens. We demand

         24  ferry service, and we'd like to see the people

         25  replaced that were doing the renegging. Driving to
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          2  Far Rockaway is like being on the Amazing Waste. And

          3  you know, we're laughing about it, but is it true or

          4  am I making this up?

          5                 Thank you for listening to me.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          7  Palmer.

          8                 MR. ROMSKI: Thank you. First of all,

          9  I would like to thank you. I'm Gerard Romski with

         10  Arverne by the Sea, and I would first like to thank

         11  you, Councilman Addabbo, as well as the fellow

         12  Council members, for their great support of Arverne,

         13  and also for Lew Simon out there, a supporter of

         14  Arverne, as well as a great supporter of the

         15  community.

         16                 That said, you know, Arverne is one

         17  of the largest urban renewal sites in the country,

         18  and what we're bringing to this community are new

         19  homeowners, and one of the main issues that the new

         20  homeowners bring to us is the transportation to New

         21  York City. And frankly, one of the simple fixes to

         22  that is something that we've been advocating for a

         23  number of years since our participation on this

         24  project, is the ferry service.

         25                 I've personally been on a number of
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          2  high-speed ferry runs, test runs, and I will tell

          3  you, from Downtown Manhattan to Beach Haven Street

          4  (phonetic) where we're building a new marina, would

          5  be a perfect location for a ferry stop, with just

          6  about 20 minutes or so.

          7                 The other thing you might want to

          8  consider, and it's something I've spoken to with

          9  State Senator Malcolm Smith is the implementation of

         10  some type of skip stop service on the A line. I

         11  think it's a relatively simple fix, it's been tried,

         12  basically it's the train to the plane and something

         13  that will also work.

         14                 Finally, I'd like to just advocate

         15  what Councilman Addabbo has advocated, which is the

         16  elimination of tolls on the bridge. I will tell you

         17  personally, every major national retail chain that

         18  we've spoken to, we've spoken to numerous ones, one

         19  of the main things that they will tell you is there

         20  is no capture. You can't capture from outside the

         21  district because of the tolls on the bridge. The

         22  tolls really need to go. They're really not more

         23  than a stop to the economic development of the

         24  community.

         25                 Finally, in my last two seconds, I

                                                            113

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  will certainly advocate at the very least a new plan

          3  be studied regarding the Far Rockaway line on the

          4  Long Island Railroad. The study that the woman from

          5  the MTA was talking about is 25 years old. There's

          6  many more members in this community, and I think

          7  that's what certainly needs to be done. Thank you

          8  for your support.

          9                 SPEAKER QUINN: Could I just request

         10  you get Phil's card or Howard can give you his card,

         11  that if you can provide to Counsel a list of those

         12  retailers you mentioned, because I think that would

         13  be very helpful information for us to have in our

         14  ongoing advocacy work on this.

         15                 MR. ROMSKI: Certainly. Thank you.

         16                 SPEAKER QUINN: And you can take

         17  Howard's card. Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Romski.

         20                 Mr. Miles.

         21                 MR. MILES: Thank you, Councilman. I'm

         22  actually going to use less than two minutes. Hi, my

         23  name is Anthony Miles, I'm an Executive Board member

         24  for ATU, Local 1056, and we serve Queens, Northern,

         25  Western, Southern Queens, and I'm here on behalf of
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          2  our President Ed Figueroa, who couldn't make it

          3  tonight, due to the fact of our general membership

          4  meeting. But we're here to let you know that we are

          5  on board with everything that needs to be done to

          6  help service, especially the Southern Queens area,

          7  where we do business out of. And I am actually a bus

          8  operator. I get a lot of flack from tour service,

          9  from which the passengers love to blame us. That's

         10  not all true. We need more service, we need more

         11  buses out there, we need more operators. When we go

         12  out to our scheduling meetings the first thing they

         13  tell us is basically that it's not needed, the

         14  service is not needed. The ridership isn't there. We

         15  know that's not true because we ride the buses and

         16  we get the information from the passengers.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         18                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Ms.

         20  Cynthia Hernandez, Walter Stecher, Ann Oswiecimski

         21  and Donald Minor. To be followed by Herbert Gormely,

         22  Dan Mundy, Michael Kerns and Yvonne Schellenberg.

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Well, I'm here

         24  first so I'll speak first. But don't start the clock

         25  because I have a point of order first.

                                                            115

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: What's the point of

          3  order?

          4                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: In order to

          5  move around the City of New York, there are four

          6  toll bridges if you want to stay in the City of New

          7  York.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's not a point

          9  of order.

         10                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Certainly is.

         11  You are incorrect in the fact that are tolls that

         12  are being set by the City of New York. We have the

         13  Bronx Whitestone, the Throggsneck Bridge, for Queens

         14  residents to go to the Bronx. And to go from Broad

         15  Channel to Rockaway from Queens we get charged. None

         16  of those bridges are over by the City of New York.

         17  And other places in the City of New York, you can

         18  drive around and not pay a toll, which you pay. And

         19  the money you're talking about that goes to them,

         20  the TA only cuts it. They don't get all of it. The

         21  bonds are held by a private City agency in the City

         22  of New York.

         23                 Okay, now you can start my clock.

         24                 Earlier the lady from MTA was talking

         25  about EZPass. Well, the lady from the MTA is
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          2  misinformed. In other words, if I wanted to use the

          3  EZPass to go to Rockaway Beaches, I have to pay $12

          4  a year for the privilege to have the EZPass.

          5  Meanwhile, on that toll bridge, only two pass lanes

          6  are open. Eight others aren't.

          7                 Normally in some of the old days when

          8  they have the traffic, they were four lanes in each

          9  way at least. One of the problems could be solved if

         10  the people that owned the bridge were good toll

         11  takers up there (sic). A lot of people are going for

         12  the ferries. Well, we had a ferry service there in

         13  the Rockaways, and it did nothing but cause a

         14  disaster. When it hit Rockaway, Breezy Point and all

         15  the way down to 84th Street, the high speed ferry

         16  throws a wake four or five foot high. When you're in

         17  a boat, your wake, you're responsible for it. So,

         18  all of the people at Breezy Point and the Rockaways

         19  and everything, the ground was ruined, the marshes

         20  were ruined. Not only that, it was a high noise

         21  there, and it was okay for the few people that

         22  wanted to get there in a half hour, but the rest of

         23  the people that use the bay were having problems

         24  because of the wake from the boat and the noise from

         25  the boat. So, I'm not for ferry service.
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          2                 What we need from the MTA, is right

          3  now the buses are just full that travel from here to

          4  Crossbay Boulevard, they stop at 10:00 at night.

          5  That's a no no. We've got to increase the bus

          6  service so it goes at least 11:00, 12:00, we have to

          7  let our students get home from night school, we have

          8  to let the fortunate kids that work be able to move

          9  back and forth in between various places.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         12                 Walter.

         13                 MR. STECHER: Hello. My name is Walter

         14  Stecher. I've lived in the Rockaways now for 51

         15  years. I moved here March of '56. The subway came in

         16  around June, and we always get the old trains. We

         17  have nothing new here. And there is nothing more

         18  that I could really add, as far as the

         19  transportation because everybody really spoke up.

         20  The only thing that I'd like to request is that they

         21  put new bus stop signs throughout the Rockaways like

         22  they have in Manhattan, because with all the

         23  building going on, like I live on the Nelson Street,

         24  they are ripping down the bus stop signs and I have

         25  to call my friend at Borough Hall, Jerry Ramira, to
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          2  get these signs put back up. And that's about all I

          3  have to say.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          5                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Stecher.

          8                 Herbert Gormely, Dan Mundy, Michael

          9  Kerns and Yvonne Schellenberg. To be followed by

         10  Norman Silverman, Raju Kololindi, Lally Davis and

         11  Jamila Wolita Simon.

         12                 MR. GORMELY: Herb Gormely. I have

         13  been a resident here for 30 years now, and I live in

         14  Belle Harbor. Yesterday I went to --

         15                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         16  AUDIENCE: We can't hear you back here.

         17                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         18  AUDIENCE: Can't hear you.

         19                 MR. GORMELY: Okay. -- East New York,

         20  71st Street, and in Belle Harbor where I am, is

         21  taking the 35 bus, which I take to the juncture, and

         22  that took me two and a half hours. I got home in

         23  more than three-quarter hours during rush hour, and

         24  I would like to advocate the starting of the

         25  Rockaway Beach cut-off, which would take us up to
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          2  Grand Central Station, the East Side Access, which

          3  yous funded, and also Penn Station, which is in

          4  place. And my neighbors used to brag that it took 35

          5  minutes to go to Beach 90th Street to Penn Station

          6  in the old days. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Herbert.

          8                 Dan Mundy.

          9                 MR. MUNDY: Yes. Thank you, Members of

         10  the City Council, for coming to listen to us

         11  tonight. I would like to touch on a couple of

         12  issues. One right out front, Crossbay Boulevard.

         13  Seventeen years ago a reconstruction project was

         14  done with the installation of the sewers and water

         15  mains there. And at the end of that project the

         16  community at Broad Channel, along with the

         17  Department of Transportation made the decision, not

         18  to put the roadway back that had been taken away, of

         19  course, to do the road construction, so we wouldn't

         20  have to go through another summer of sand in our

         21  houses, and that road construction was never done

         22  properly and there is no concrete bed in that

         23  roadway out there, it's just blacktop on top. It was

         24  done as a temporary measure.

         25                 Right now Community Board 14 has this

                                                            120

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  as a number one priority as a capital project to do

          3  Crossbay Boulevard from curb-to-curb on both sides,

          4  with a new turn lane in the middle. With the

          5  increase of traffic going to Rockaway, with the

          6  increase of the homes over there, as you've heard,

          7  we've had a great increase in the amount of traffic

          8  going through this community, it's down to two

          9  lanes, and with the new construction and the capital

         10  project will call for a turn lane in the middle,

         11  similar to Howard Beach and be able to open it back

         12  up to three lanes.

         13                 In addition to that, you may have to

         14  do that quicker than you think, because under Cross

         15  Bay Boulevard, Jamaica Bay crosses under Cross Bay

         16  Boulevard a few blocks from here. It was done over

         17  50 years ago and hasn't been reconstructed since

         18  then, and it's getting ready to collapse. You're

         19  going to have an emergency situation on your hands

         20  very soon. If you hit that bump now, you can feel

         21  it, and the inspection indicate that that's getting

         22  ready to go. So, that capital project is now going

         23  to have to be moved up.

         24                 In regards to the streets in Broad

         25  Channel and flooding, called tidal flooding, and the
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          2  sea level rises one inch every ten years, so in my

          3  lifetime we're talking about a six to eight inch

          4  rise in sea level. So, in order to compensate that,

          5  the streets have to be raised. Because during the

          6  century we're going to lose that. So, that's the

          7  only solution to that project.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Bundy.

         10                 Mr. Kerns.

         11                 MR. KALIDINDI: My name is Raju

         12  Kalidindi.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I don't think I've

         14  called you, have I?

         15                 MR. KALIDINDI: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Oh, I'm sorry.

         17  You're right. Okay.

         18                 MR. KALIDINDI: I'm sorry.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, go ahead then.

         20                 MR. KALIDINDI: Good evening, Council

         21  Member, for coming here. And this is my first time

         22  attending this Council. I moved to Rockaways two

         23  years ago. It was very good, but the transportation

         24  is very bad. To go to Manhattan, sometimes takes

         25  more than two hours. So, me and my wife, we're
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          2  thinking maybe let's go back to Bronx. No, the Beach

          3  is good, let's live here. So, I request the MTA and

          4  DOT to include the transportation. Number one, the

          5  ferries, the air lines, and the subway stations are

          6  not in good shape. And the Arverne by the Sea

          7  (inaudible). We need to pay the tolls for everybody.

          8  A small toll, $2 nothing, they will take billions

          9  and billions of dollars. So, I request everybody to

         10  understand my request and everybody's request to do

         11  something in action and put a line to the Beach.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         13  Mr. Kololindi, for participating.

         14                 MR. KALIDINDI: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         16  gentlemen.

         17                 Next panel. Norman Silverman, Lally

         18  Davis, Jamila Walida Simon and Rasheeda Simon. To be

         19  followed by Aiysha Simon Danny Russilo, Leo Fahey

         20  and Dana Griffin. I

         21  and they're all related to Lew Simon.

         22                 MR. SIMON: Not related.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Not related. How

         24  about Paul Simon. Just kidding.

         25                 Go ahead, Norman, please.
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          2                 MR. SILVERMAN: Thank you, City

          3  Council members, for coming out here. I'm Norman

          4  Silverman, not the one with the MTA, but I am an

          5  active Transit advocate. I'm with Baysworth Civic

          6  Association (phonetic). I think many of the

          7  transportation problems in Rockaway are a historical

          8  accident, like when the Long Island Railroad was

          9  suffering through a period of bankruptcy in the

         10  1950s, it didn't do the repairs that were necessary,

         11  didn't take care of their trestle, the trestle

         12  burned down, they didn't have the money to replace

         13  it and they turned transportation over to the City.

         14  The City didn't want to get involved in rebuilding

         15  back the 50 or 60 years from Rockaway and South

         16  Queens directly into Penn Station. It was lost from

         17  that time. Now is the time for rebirth of this

         18  historical accident, reconnect the line that's

         19  there. Thousands and thousands are people are have

         20  signed petitions for the reopening of the Rockaway

         21  line. Lew Simon collecting petitions. I was one of

         22  the group who carried the petitions to Governor

         23  Pataki's office, to Mayor Giuliani's office, to

         24  Borough President Clair Shulman's office. They're

         25  all out of the office now. I don't know where those
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          2  petitions wound up, but the voice of the people, as

          3  shown here today, shows that people want this. We

          4  can collect the petitions again. We don't want

          5  another group of elected officials to go through

          6  their years and not take care of this problem.

          7                 We would like to see from now on any

          8  kind of transportation issue that comes before the

          9  Transportation Committee, remember that Rockaway

         10  line should be reopened. It's a needed thing that

         11  could not be replaced. If it didn't exist, we

         12  wouldn't have the nerve to come in and ask for the

         13  billions of dollars necessary. But it's here and the

         14  small, relatively small amount of money that is

         15  needed could be used to reopen this line.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         17                 MR. SILVERMAN: Thank you very much

         18  for your time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         20                 Ms. Jamila Walida Simon.

         21                 MS. WALIDA SIMON: Thank you, and good

         22  evening. I hope that in the future we can have the

         23  residents speak first so that we don't have folks

         24  leaving where we have a very lot of things to say.

         25                 The A line of the longest line in New

                                                            125

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  York City in the last stop has been neglected on the

          3  A train for years. Our bus services are no longer

          4  subsidized but all of our schedules are limited to

          5  say the least.

          6                 As a graduate student at Cornell

          7  University and a resident of Far Rockaway for the

          8  past 28 years, I've faced quite a few transportation

          9  challenges.

         10                 I went to high school in Bayside,

         11  which took three hours each way, we only recently

         12  got express service in Jamaica, Queens. I've missed

         13  flights to conferences due to weekend service

         14  changes and other extenuating circumstances, and

         15  each morning I take the Q22 to the A line to

         16  Rockaway Park, I live in Far Rockaway, just to get

         17  to my office on 34th Street, which takes an hour and

         18  a half during the morning on a good day. And, so,

         19  I've spent a large part of my life on the train and

         20  the bus, and I think that this is really absurd.

         21                 About 55 percent of our residents

         22  take public transportation, that means they don't

         23  even have access to cars, and this is something that

         24  really needs to be looked at.

         25                 Little has changed, because I still
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          2  call the MTA to make complaints, and we still are

          3  yet to have a cohesive response to why things are so

          4  limited. I'd like to see more than participatory

          5  action research. I have plenty of colleagues who can

          6  help. I'd like to see more public outreach done, not

          7  at the outset of issues, at the beginning of the

          8  forefront, and I think we should really implement

          9  changes and you should be talking directly to the

         10  people who it impacts, you know, people like me who

         11  take the train and the bus every day. Not because we

         12  are aware, but more so because I don't have a

         13  choice, I have to pay $2 and get into the City. So,

         14  we could look at all of these options that are on

         15  the table today, and make those options available to

         16  our residents. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Ms.

         18  Simon.

         19                 I think I might have skipped Lally

         20  Davis. I'm sorry about that, Ms. Davis. Go ahead.

         21                 MS. DAVIS: That's okay. I'm glad to

         22  be here, and I want to tell you all, if you want to

         23  be my real and new best friend, you'll do what we're

         24  asking you to do, because it's very important.

         25                 I happen to be the president of a
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          2  local cancer unit, and women are approaching senior

          3  citizen status, they're wonderful people, some have

          4  cars, but they love to go and do, and they

          5  appreciate getting into the City and having the fun

          6  of the City. I don't even get there, and it's like

          7  in Rockaway there is so much construction going on,

          8  what sense is it to have one lane to go into Far

          9  Rockaway, with all the influx of people that we

         10  expect to have? It's a ridiculous situation, and we

         11  really do need this service to the subway, and we

         12  implore you to do it because you're cutting us off.

         13  I personally am really outraged when I see the

         14  trouble that people have to get places. I have a

         15  car, I'm lucky, but it really is an outrage and we

         16  deserve better and we should get better. And I'd

         17  like to go home and have dinner, so if people could

         18  say yes to everything we're doing and asking for,

         19  I'll go home very happy.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We'd like to go home

         21  and have dinner too.

         22                 MS. DAVIS: You know, I agree with

         23  Delores Orr and I don't always agree with Lew, but

         24  tonight I do.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.
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          2                 MS. DAVIS: With all of the building

          3  that's going on, Rockaway is going to slip into the

          4  ocean. So, you better watch us.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 Aiysha Simon, Danny Russillo, Leo

          8  Fayhe and Dana Griffin, please join us. To be

          9  followed by Kevin Maroney, Marie Masiewicz, Linda

         10  Russillo, and Monica Jones.

         11                 Please proceed.

         12                 MS. SIMON: Good evening, everyone. My

         13  name is Aiysha Simon. I'm a sibling of Jamila Simon

         14  who just came up. I would like to first thank

         15  District Leader Lew Simon for providing the buses to

         16  get us here, and for the Council for allowing us to

         17  have this platform to speak about the issues in

         18  Rockaway.

         19                 I have been a resident of Rockaway

         20  all my life for 30 years, and Rockaway has had had a

         21  lot of issues, as far as transportation is

         22  concerned. I am in support of addressing what we

         23  have now. I am in support of reactivation of the

         24  Long Island Railroad Rockaway Beach Line, but I'm

         25  also in support of what we have now. We are
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          2  underserved as a community. We have a large

          3  geriatric population. We have a population of people

          4  who are handicapped. The bus service is absolutely

          5  deplorable. The train service is deplorable. You

          6  tell us we have new buses, but those new buses mean

          7  nothing to us unless they're on the road, and unless

          8  we have drivers who are on schedule, on a real

          9  schedule, we need express service. Why we don't have

         10  it is absolutely ridiculous. Why are the two buses

         11  one right behind the other? That means somebody is

         12  not on time. Somebody is seriously slacking. We need

         13  coordination, including the Q22 and the Q35. Why we

         14  get to one stop and the next bus is pulling up

         15  before you can even get up the street. We need

         16  coordination between the Q22 bus and Q113 bus. They

         17  run in practically the same route and there needs to

         18  be more coordination. My 80-year-old grandmother

         19  comes to visit us. There is no reason why she should

         20  be standing on 115th Street, getting off of the 22

         21  bus with a 30-minute ride and waiting another 40

         22  minutes for the 35 bus to come.

         23                 We need to address driver

         24  professionalism, and we need to address the things

         25  that happen on a day-to-day basis. We need to
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          2  address accountability. Our money is as good as

          3  everyone else's, as green as everyone else's, as

          4  green as a resident who lives in Brooklyn, lives in

          5  Manhattan, lives in the Bronx and Staten Island. We

          6  deserve and we demand better service to Manhattan

          7  now.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Ms.

          9  Simon.

         10                 All right, so try to top that.

         11                 MR. FAHEY: No way.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please identify

         13  yourself for the record.

         14                 MR. FAHEY: All right. My name is Leo

         15  Fahey. Right now I'm speaking as a private citizen

         16  of Breezy Point. I do have a request. First of all,

         17  thank you all for coming. There is no way that I can

         18  top a lot of the folks who have spoken here, so I'm

         19  not about to. What I would like to do, if you don't

         20  mind, is I would like for you to help me with a

         21  personal problem. I love my wife. The problem is

         22  that by the time she gets home from her job in

         23  Midtown Manhattan, there is absolutely no personal

         24  time. There is very little time for her to do

         25  anything other than smile, sit down in front of the
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          2  television, and allow me to cook her meals. Which is

          3  fine. That's okay. But it would be really great if

          4  she could make it home in about maybe 30, 35

          5  minutes, as well as anywhere between an

          6  hour-forty-five and two and a quarter hours.

          7                 Now, ferry services would really work

          8  okay, but there's only one major problem. Even

          9  though my wife absolutely adores the beach, she has

         10  a problem with water. Now, she is not about to set

         11  foot on a ferry, even if I beg her to. So, how in

         12  the world are we going to get this relationship off

         13  at last? So, please, please, for the sake of my

         14  marriage, let's see what we can do about getting my

         15  wife home.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Fahey. I do not think that this Committee has

         18  blushed ever so much before.

         19                 Ms. Griffin. Ms. Griffin, you want to

         20  top that one? Ms. Jones. Sorry. Go ahead, Ms. Jones.

         21  And why don't I ask Kevin Maroney, Marie Masiewicz

         22  and Linda Ruscillo to come up as well.

         23                 Please proceed, Ms. Jones.

         24                 MS. JONES: My name is Monica Jones.

         25  I'm a resident of Far Rockaway, Queens, and I cannot

                                                            132

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  top what she said. It's like everything that she was

          3  saying was what I was going to say. It's like for me

          4  to say what I was going to say would be repeating

          5  what she was going to say. And I am a middle working

          6  class person that I am at the mercy of the MTA,

          7  because I have a medical disability of seizures, so

          8  it's like I cannot drive. It's like at a point I was

          9  going to try to fight for my license because, you

         10  know, I wanted to drive, but when the bus driver

         11  ended up having the seizure on the bus, it's like I

         12  just gave it up. But my thing is it adequately --

         13  the bus schedule is horrible, and it's like the

         14  connections from the 22 to the 113 back and forth,

         15  it's like the bus drivers will look at you, see you

         16  get off the opposite bus and will not open up the

         17  door. They will just keep on following, and it's

         18  like we need help, we really need help.

         19                 I thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         21  Ms. Jones.

         22                 Would you be Ms. Masiewicz? Just go

         23  ahead and identify yourself for the record.

         24                 MS. MASIEWICZ: I am very honored to

         25  be here because we are serving a good cause.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Could you identify

          3  yourself, please?

          4                 MS. MASIEWICZ: My name is Marie

          5  Masiewicz, everybody, and I'm pleased to be one of

          6  Lew's people and I strongly feel that something

          7  potent needs to be done as soon as possible,

          8  considering the many thousands of residents that

          9  have moved to Rockaway in the past, many, there will

         10  be more within the future, and this means in the

         11  near future, too. And I think we're in trouble now

         12  if we don't do something. And also, I heard somebody

         13  speaking before and I agreed with that. I'm reading

         14  this, that something should be done about

         15  evacuation, because I mean it's common sense, I mean

         16  so many people are going to block our way of getting

         17  out, and nobody really knows what to do, what are we

         18  going to do? It's very frightening. And then we have

         19  the danger where we live by the ocean, with all the

         20  storms, the North Eastern that has happened

         21  recently, and it's something that I think should be

         22  dealt with. We should consider that. We should

         23  really take it serious and not take this lightly.

         24  It's a very important issue.

         25                 And I also wanted to mention, I agree
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          2  with Lew and others that it does take at least two

          3  hours to most places to Manhattan to travel either

          4  back or forth from Rockaway. It's very time

          5  consuming. Anyway, thank you for letting me speak. I

          6  enjoyed it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Ms.

          8  Masiewicz.

          9                 Michael O'Toole, Sharon Hamlin, Glen

         10  Deresto and Kathleen Devlin, please join us at the

         11  witness table. And the following people, please get

         12  ready. Maronerista Shea, Joseph Tiraco, Vivian

         13  Carter, and Mari Gallons. Just come on down.

         14                 Just identify yourself for the

         15  record.

         16                 MR. O'TOOLE: Michael O'Toole,

         17  Rockaway Park. I'd like to direct the questions in

         18  DOT. They left. As usual. I'll submit testimony for

         19  the record and make it short and sweet.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         21  We do have a representative from the DOT.

         22                 MR. O'TOOLE: Thank you, sir. Very

         23  much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: He's a good guy.

         25                 Identify yourself for the record,
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          2  please.

          3                 MS. CARTER: My name is Vivian Carter.

          4  I live in Belle Harbor and my family needs to get

          5  home. I have the only car, I have to go grocery

          6  shopping. So, thank you all for staying late, but

          7  our family is inconvenienced greatly too.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you for being

          9  here.

         10                 MS. CARTER: We are really frustrated.

         11  We lose our only second car in October. It was

         12  rear-ended by an MTA bus in front of Waldbaums, and

         13  I have had experiences in the last few months of

         14  being a public transit rider going in and out of the

         15  City outside of rush hour, and informing what

         16  everyone said, two hours easily. Easily two hours,

         17  making three and four connections, if you take a Q35

         18  bus over to Brooklyn College. And I don't understand

         19  why other neighborhoods have express services, I

         20  don't get that, why the door on the 4 train closes

         21  shut the minute you're on at Franklin Avenue, trying

         22  to change tracks two times in one trip, in coming

         23  back from Manhattan last week. The only thing I want

         24  to say, I took a trip into Manhattan last week, I

         25  had to go do a few errands at the station and a
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          2  friend called me on my cell phone. He said, oh, pop

          3  over in Newark, you know, have a picture of Sangria

          4  down there. Well, it took 30 minutes, from 25 to 30.

          5  It was beautiful. Come to the train, got myself a

          6  ticket, down into Newark, got back. P.S., I arrived

          7  home at 9:00 that night taking the train, three

          8  trains in Penn Station to Rockaway. So, why can you

          9  get to Newark 30 minutes, but you can't get to

         10  Rockaway? The last time I took a good trip, you have

         11  your car and you drive down, you get into the

         12  municipal lot, 1995 I made it in 35 minutes to

         13  Rockefeller Center. You could do that in 1995. There

         14  is not a chance you can do it now.

         15                 So, last thing I want to say, I know

         16  there is political reasons why the Rockaway branch

         17  is not being activated, and I'm going to ask all of

         18  you, because I know your districts cross over and

         19  you have constituencies, please consider that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Ms.

         21  Carter.

         22                 MS. CARTER: We need to work it out

         23  for all of our communities, all of the people

         24  getting to work.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. That's
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          2  very insightful.

          3                 Michele Silverman, Joseph Cliff,

          4  Charles Meier and Andrew Chozakis.

          5                 Thanks for coming. Please identify

          6  yourself for the record.

          7                 MR. CLIFT: Good evening, Madam

          8  Speaker, members of the City Council of this great

          9  City, my name is Joseph Clift, I'm here to represent

         10  the Regional Rail Working Group, an organization of

         11  rail advocates and professionals focused on

         12  improving regional transportation through changes in

         13  the operation, pricing and physical plant of the

         14  tristate area's commuter rail network. I am past

         15  director of planning for Long Island Railroad, and a

         16  past senior member of Transportation and Environment

         17  Committee Chair of Manhattan Community Board 5.

         18                 Tonight I want to encourage the City

         19  of New York, especially the City Council, and its

         20  Transportation Committee, to actively pursue

         21  restoration of the Rockaway cutoff, the four-mile

         22  disused Long Island Railroad Line, and a commitment

         23  from the MTA to provide Long Island Railroad

         24  one-seat ride service from Penn Station to Grand

         25  Central Terminal via cutoff to local stations, A
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          2  train and aqueduct and onto JFK air terminals.

          3                 I suggest that the MTA study of a

          4  cutoff referred to tonight is out of date, given the

          5  current construction of the Long Island Railroad's

          6  eastside access project, which will provide that

          7  added capacity that makes Rockaway cutoff service

          8  absolutely feasible.

          9                 Restoration of the cutoff, a

         10  relatively low-cost proposal, if properly planned,

         11  is a key component of a regional rail system plan

         12  and could be a key part of the Mayor's

         13  sustainability plan. Restoration of Long Island Rail

         14  service via cutoff, combined with the integrated

         15  fare and frequent service elements of our plan, will

         16  provide phenomenal improvement in transportation

         17  options for residents and businesses of South

         18  Queens.

         19                 I refer you to our website

         20  www.rrwg.org for additional information on a

         21  regional rail system plan presented in our show,

         22  Making The Connection.

         23                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         24  speak.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,
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          2  Mr. Clift.

          3                 Our next panel, Lynne Washburn, Phil

          4  McManos, Ronald Dillon, and Robert Rooney.

          5                 MR. CHOZAKIS: I'm Andrew Chozakis.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, go ahead.

          7                 MR. CHOZAKIS: Thank you. I'm Andrew

          8  Chozakis. I am a Rockaway resident. I'm a business

          9  man and property owner, I am also a member of the

         10  Community Board. I arrived here today via mass

         11  transit. I would like you to know that when my

         12  journey started I was clean shaven. I'm not going to

         13  go into anything that you don't know, I don't want

         14  to insult your intelligence. It's all about vision,

         15  as Councilman Addabbo said, socioeconomic

         16  development here in Rockaway. In part, we're living

         17  through the most magnificent renaissance the City of

         18  New York has ever seen. It's absolutely magnificent.

         19                 Transportation is just the one

         20  stumbling block for making the Rockaway Peninsula

         21  the Chairman and the Tierra of the greatest City in

         22  the world. There is absolutely no doubt about it.

         23  Not only have the residents of Rockaway had to

         24  struggle with transportation, and I'm sure there are

         25  simple solutions to simple problems. In 1970, when I
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          2  got out of Junior High School 183, I'd walk upstairs

          3  and take the E train, which became known as the

          4  train to the plane, and I met my mother in Macy's in

          5  Herald Square by 3:30, okay? That's the simple

          6  solution to the simple problem. Whatever they are,

          7  they can be addressed. But this study is something

          8  that you should know, the MTA did a study on train

          9  stations that revenues were up over 300 percent. The

         10  first two were two stations in the west side of

         11  Manhattan, the third was the G line that stopped in

         12  Williamsburg, where it stopped in Williamsburg I

         13  couldn't tell you. The fourth one was the Playland

         14  stop on East 98th Street in Rockaway Beach. The

         15  neighborhood is changing by the second, as people

         16  come in from Northern Brooklyn, Downtown Manhattan

         17  is magnificent. My wife and I opened up a jazz blues

         18  club in Rockaway, and I want you to know that

         19  feasibility is feasibility. We don't tell the

         20  customers, well, when we have enough the band will

         21  be here. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chozakis.

         24                 MS. WASHBURN: Council members, thank

         25  you very kindly for this opportunity.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please identify

          3  yourself.

          4                 MS. WASHBURN: Oh, I beg your pardon.

          5  My name is Lynne Washburn. I'm a resident in

          6  Rockaway Park and I implore the MTA to please take

          7  another look at the Rockaways, whether it be in the

          8  NYMTC study or another study that could be conducted

          9  to lift this real and enduring hardship that the

         10  cummuters in the Rockaways suffer as a result of the

         11  inefficiency of our transportation network. Please

         12  take another look at the Rockaways.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         14                 MR. ROONEY: My name is Robert Rooney

         15  of Breezy Point. I have a couple of points. I work

         16  in Midtown Manhattan and I commute every day, but

         17  instead of taking the A train, I drive to Sheepshead

         18  Bay, which I get the B, (inaudible word). By doing

         19  that it's like an additional tax of $500 a year, a

         20  dollar each way.

         21                 I have a daughter that goes to Bishop

         22  Corning High School in Brooklyn, 63 Bay Parkway. I

         23  have to pay an additional $500 a year for bus

         24  service for her to get to school. Nobody else in the

         25  City has to do this, all right?
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          2                 As a resident, I would like to see

          3  the toll stay the same, but eliminating it to the

          4  residents. If my daughter wants to play volley ball

          5  in Brooklyn, it costs me $2.00. If she wants to go

          6  to a movie, or if I have to buy a washing machine or

          7  buy clothes or anything else, it costs me $2.00 each

          8  way, which runs out to $2,000 a year, approximately.

          9  That's an additional tax, cash out of my pocket.

         10                 All right, now, for the ferry

         11  service, for the people of Staten Island, I have

         12  friends that work in Midtown, and they live in

         13  Staten Island. You can get on and off the Staten

         14  Island train as many times as you want and it

         15  doesn't cost you a dime. If you get on at St. George

         16  and off at St. George, it costs $2.00, it's like a

         17  regular fare, but in between it's free.

         18                 Now, if you're going to work in the

         19  morning to St. George to get the ferry service, you

         20  pay a $2.00 fare. You get a transfer ticket. You get

         21  free ferry service and then you get a free transfer

         22  ticket. You're getting a train service, free ferry

         23  and also a free transfer to take the subway or bus

         24  to Manhattan. You know, Congressman Weiner, he has

         25  to adopt a bill right now for ferry service.
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          2  Congressman Weiner has $15 million sitting right

          3  there right now for three high-speed ferries. We

          4  have the money, we just need a little subsidy from

          5  the City. Now, if they do it for Staten Island, they

          6  can do it for us.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          8  Mr. Rooney. Thank you.

          9                 MR. DILLON: My name is Ronald J.

         10  Dillon. I'm here on behalf of the Jewels Street

         11  Association, the sewer projects in the Jewels Street

         12  that straddles Brooklyn and Queens. I'm a member of

         13  Brooklyn Community Board 5, and have been working on

         14  this project for about 15 years.

         15                 For 15 years we were told that there

         16  was money in the project, the only issue was DEP

         17  planning the sewers. Fifteen years later when DEP

         18  has finally said that they resolved the problem, DOT

         19  has defunded the project. DOT defunded the project

         20  and will not provide a reason why. This has been a

         21  number one project in Community Board 5 for at least

         22  the last five years. We deserve an answer to why the

         23  DOT has defunded the project and we would ask the

         24  Committee to help us in getting that answer.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          3  Mr. Dillon.

          4                 Sharon O'Connell, Leonard Cohen, John

          5  Fazio and Charles Jacobs. Let me note that we

          6  received written testimony to be entered into the

          7  record by Virginia Minardi of Rockaway Park.

          8                 Please identify yourself for the

          9  record.

         10                 MS. O'CONNELL: Hi. My name is Sharon

         11  O'Connell. I live in Rockaway Park. Just a quick

         12  point. DOT said they maintain the bus route. There

         13  is constant vandalism of the bus shelter between 102

         14  and the 108, and I just want to know who pays the

         15  repair? The advertisers, the taxpayer, they need to

         16  replace the plexiglass. It needs more police

         17  activity. That's one.

         18                 Two, ever since they maintain getting

         19  the air train, for a resident in Rockaway to get to

         20  Kennedy, you have to pay MetroCard first $3 and then

         21  $5 to get to the terminal. It's $7 each way. That

         22  makes it $14 roundtrip. I believe you can get to

         23  Suffolk County on a monthly train for $200 a month.

         24  So, now since they have the air train, not only is

         25  Rockaway not getting utilized, we're paying $7 one
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          2  way where it used to be $2. My husband now says it's

          3  too expensive to take a train to work. He works at

          4  Kennedy, he takes a car.

          5                 Last week's Nor'easter is due to

          6  global warming. We should really encourage the

          7  people to get out of their cars, not encouraging

          8  EZPass or for bridge traffic in the summer, which is

          9  encouraging people. Maybe we can give free mass

         10  transit in the summer to come to the beach.

         11                 Let's see, I used to work in Montrous

         12  PBA (phonetic), it was in the shadow of Indian

         13  Point. The residents of Cortland and Montrous get

         14  huge tax breaks. I believe the utility plant picks

         15  up, subsidizes their tax because it's considered

         16  very negative to be in the shadow. Again, back to my

         17  point with Kennedy Airport, it is kind of negative

         18  to be under a ploy path (phonetic) between jet fuel

         19  and noise and maybe to eliminate the $7 cost, maybe

         20  Kennedy could be backed for the residents of

         21  Rockaway, also to get them out of their car, because

         22  it's due to over-development and due to all their

         23  selfishness.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. FAZIO: My name is John Fazio. And

          3  I'm with Community Board 10 for 32 years, and I'm a

          4  resident of Hamilton Beach for 71 years, and I

          5  remember when I could walk down the block, get on a

          6  train in Hamilton Beach and be in Manhattan in 20

          7  minutes. Now I have to walk or get a bus a mile, get

          8  to the Howard Beach Station, take a train, and be

          9  lucky to be at my old firehouse in an hour. I drove

         10  to the City when I was a firefighter, because it was

         11  simpler to take my car than to take that A train,

         12  then take a change of trains.

         13                 So, we see progress after 60 years. I

         14  can now take a train in Howard Beach, pay $2, get on

         15  the train to the plane then go to Jamaica to go to

         16  Manhattan. That makes a lot of sense, but not to me.

         17  It makes a lot of sense to the Port Authority who

         18  wants the train that goes to LaGuardia Airport, and

         19  that's probably the reason why we don't have a train

         20  that goes directly to Manhattan through Forest Park

         21  and into Penn Station.

         22                 Also, if the Pathmark Train connected

         23  to the Penn Station, which wouldn't be far, we could

         24  make it from Kennedy Airport to Newark Airport, Y

         25  train in 38 minutes, that would be progress, and
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          2  that would be a wonderful thing.

          3                 How many cars would be off the road,

          4  and how many people would be satisfied with moving

          5  about this City? Hamilton Beach does this and the

          6  roads must be paved to get out of the tide flow.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Fazio. Thank you.

          9                 MR. KOHN: My name is Leonard Kohn.

         10  I'm a Rockaway resident since 1938, and all I did

         11  was see transportation go down hill since then.

         12                 As a student in Park Bay High School,

         13  I used to leave class, jump on the Long Island

         14  Railroad to a job in Manhattan in 32 minutes, then

         15  come back and go do my homework. I've been here, and

         16  I've heard stories from every politician in Rockaway

         17  since the City took over the line. They've all said

         18  we're trying our best, and since I've been here it's

         19  been a democratic party for as long as I know. And

         20  my father always told me, if the horse you are on

         21  isn't winning, maybe it's time to change horses. All

         22  of my friends are democrats, including the

         23  politicians. I'm looking to see Joe's face, and Joe

         24  Shapiro way in the back representing Audrey. But

         25  these are the same people, and I'm going back to who
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          2  represented us before Audrey, 30 elections, and one

          3  time we had an organization called "Q rate" that

          4  pushed this right through. We had an organization

          5  that was going to take 5,000 people at least who

          6  signed up to go walk from Rockaway to Metropolitan

          7  Avenue on Crossbay Boulevard and Woodhaven. I got

          8  calls from Gernie (phonetic) up in Albany a week

          9  before, Lenny, you must stop. You can't do it. She

         10  never told me why. So, all the stories we're

         11  getting, we should really find out what the real

         12  story is. There must be something there behind

         13  that's stopping it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Cohen.

         16                 MR. KOHN: Am I to understand these

         17  people, six people or better, who have a little more

         18  money than we do, and they represent themselves. We

         19  are 5,000 or better and we can't do anything.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Cohen.

         22                 Next panel, Chris Thompson. Julie and

         23  Douglas Solas. Barbara DePinto, and Chris Wade.

         24                 Please identify yourselves and

         25  proceed.
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          2                 MR. THOMPSON: My name is Chris

          3  Thompson. I live on Beach 99th Street. Right across

          4  the street from your office, Councilman Addabbo,

          5  where the City tore up the sidewalk and left a

          6  really nasty blacktop scab.

          7                 I thought it was kind of

          8  disappointing that the MTA sent someone who wasn't a

          9  specialist in trains to tell us we would have more A

         10  train service. They're only message was sorry.

         11                 I just want to say that somebody

         12  already mentioned that there are no more nine to

         13  five jobs. My wife and I both work two jobs. We

         14  spend a lot of time in Manhattan, and it's pretty

         15  tough getting back home. We get home late. My wife

         16  is starting night school, it's going to be even

         17  worse.

         18                 As far as ferries, some have already

         19  mentioned that there is $15 million as a result of

         20  the Transportation Act of 2005. That money was

         21  earmarked for ferries to and from Rockaway. I was

         22  just wondering if they knew where that money was.

         23  It's still there? At least it hasn't been turned

         24  down by the MTA.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very, very

          3  much, Mr. Thompson.

          4                 Mr. Wade.

          5                 MR. WADE: Hello. My name is Chris

          6  Wade (phonetic). And I hope for your sakes that I'm

          7  one of the finalists, it's pretty late.

          8                 I'm one of the new residents in

          9  Arverne. I move here in October. And I wanted to

         10  give a little perspective about how the residents

         11  new to the community in that Arverne project feel

         12  about transportation.

         13                 I think we really stand in solidarity

         14  with the entire community, which it needs to

         15  improve. You need improvement on the toll situation.

         16  We need better train and subway service. We need

         17  better bus service, and most of all, I think we need

         18  some innovative real work to get us up there. The

         19  most important transportation, and they're all

         20  important, but the most important transportation

         21  issue, especially at the Arverne Project, is could

         22  it work as it's been envisioned in soul by the

         23  Mayor's Office, by Arverne, and indeed by those of

         24  us who have moved here, is could it be meaningful

         25  access to Manhattan?  And right now we don't have
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          2  it.

          3                 It really is as simple as that.

          4  Everything hinges on that. And I would say in

          5  particular that we really worry now about the talk

          6  about congestion. Pricing, et cetera, a lot of what

          7  is going on is a regressive tax against the middle

          8  class, and, you know, I don't want to make it a

          9  confrontational issue, because I think the

         10  community, I think Manhattan benefits when the

         11  boroughs do well, and so when I hear Speaker Quinn

         12  on the Brian Lair Show again, if she's willing to

         13  take this and make it an issue, not just for her

         14  district, but really, you know, bring this outside

         15  of our borough and talk to the rest of the Manhattan

         16  community and the other boroughs about the

         17  particular needs of Rockaway and make this project

         18  work. I mean, it's a really great project. I think

         19  that we're going to add a lot to the community, but

         20  we won't be able to do that if we don't have

         21  meaningful transportation.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr. Wade.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 Vincent Castellano, David Lichtentha,

         25  Ronnie Anderson and Thomas Paladino.
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          2                 Mr. Castellano.

          3                 MR. CASTELLANO: Thank you. Hi. Thank

          4  you for making me wait til Thursday afternoon. But

          5  thank you for being here.

          6                 It seems to me that the people a the

          7  top of the political food chain in New York City

          8  have to take a different perspective of the City.

          9  This is a City of islands, and that provides certain

         10  challenges and certain advantages, and we have to

         11  take advantage of those issues.

         12                 I was the Chair of Community Board 14

         13  in the early '90s and I asked the Economic

         14  Development Committee the very simple question, if

         15  you could do one thing to improve life in Rockaway,

         16  what would it be? The Committee came back

         17  unanimously with transportation. More important than

         18  schools, more important than jobs, more important

         19  than roads, it's total transportation, because if

         20  you provide that the problems pretty much take care

         21  of themselves. You're even putting an enormous dent

         22  in poverty, because people can get the jobs and they

         23  can get to schools.

         24                 I wanted to add a couple of thoughts

         25  in my list. On the ferry, I think the ferry is
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          2  crucial. It's almost outrageous that the City has

          3  not established a ferry from Jamaica Bay, some place

          4  in Jamaica Bay to Manhattan. For a ferry to work,

          5  not only looking at it from a political point of

          6  view, I'm trained as an engineer, so I look at it

          7  without politics, which means it will never happen.

          8  But ferry needs three things to work - it's got to

          9  be fast; it's got to be reliable; and it's got to be

         10  cheap. And there is a location in this vicinity that

         11  could provide all of those attributes, and that's a

         12  dock at Barron Highland Marina (phonetic), which is

         13  three miles that way, okay? It is a deep-water port.

         14  Deep-water marina, which means you can use a big

         15  boat. A big boat is important because it's got to be

         16  able to move in all kinds of weather. It's got to be

         17  reliable. Once you're under the Verrazano Bridge, in

         18  bad weather, you better be in a big boat. Otherwise,

         19  you're going to be swimming in vomit.

         20                 Joe --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Castellano. Please wrap up.

         23                 MR. CASTELLANO: It's also cheap,

         24  because if you have ferry from Barron Island Marina,

         25  you can attract traffic off of the Belt Parkway,
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          2  increasing ridership and reducing the unit costs;

          3  and third, it could be fast, because that's less

          4  than 25 minutes non-stop from Barron Island to Lower

          5  Manhattan.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Castellano.

          9                 MR. PALADINO: My name is Tom

         10  Paladino. I'm a resident of Rockaway. I'm also

         11  president of the TWFM Ferry Company that is now

         12  operating the ferry service from Brooklyn Army

         13  Terminal to Manhattan.

         14                 We have vessels ready to go, the dock

         15  is in place, and we could start ferry service by

         16  June 1st, until the new ferries are built. The money

         17  is there, the docks are there, all the

         18  infrastructure is in place. We've been held up by

         19  the subsidy from the City and DOT. They will not

         20  release it.

         21                 I just wanted to get cars off the

         22  road, I just want to refer to the last Transit

         23  strike. We carry 300 people a day. On a Monday we

         24  carried 300 people. Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday

         25  that week we carried 6,000, 7,000, and 8,000 people.
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          2  It was put on the paper that it was the best way to

          3  get to Manhattan. The reason why we carry only 300

          4  people is because the burden should not fall on the

          5  public. It should be a MetroCard that's allowed on

          6  the ferry, and that's the way you're going to get

          7  cars off the road and make the ferry be successful.

          8  Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         10  Mr. Paladino, for stepping up to the plate.

         11                 Identify yourself.

         12                 MR. ANDERSON: My name is Colin

         13  Anderson.

         14                 SPEAKER QUINN: Where do you live,

         15  honey? Tell us where you live.

         16                 MR. ANDERSON: Far Rockaway. And I

         17  just wanted to say, I just moved here a year ago and

         18  the bus service is just horrible. The bus drivers

         19  are rude, and I think really we need a better

         20  choice. If we could just get two ferries, and then

         21  whatever money you make, use that to get another

         22  one.

         23                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         24                 MS. Greetings. It's kind of late, I'm

         25  going to get to the point. The filthy bird droppings
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          2  in the bus station is horrible. It's disgusting. We

          3  need an elevator at Beach 44, Mott Avenue is

          4  disgusting, the train station is just so filthy. The

          5  infrequent buses, you know, the services aren't even

          6  addressed, how we have 20 minutes waiting for a bus

          7  in inclement situations. Rude bus drivers, old

          8  buses, bus stop missing, the signs missing.

          9  Sometimes there is a stick there and people say, oh,

         10  yeah, that's the bus stop, not a sign.

         11                 The buses sometimes are saying "not

         12  in service" during rush hour and just be passing by.

         13  You see five buses pass by and the little one, I

         14  have a little six-month-old baby, coming from the

         15  doctor's office, and just five buses just pass us

         16  right by, and they're saying "not in service" during

         17  the rush hour, it's just unacceptable. Elevators. We

         18  need elevators.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         20  Mr. And Mrs. Anderson.

         21                 Mr. Anderson, you want to add

         22  something?

         23                 MR. ANDERSON: No.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Anderson.
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          2                 SPEAKER QUINN: And with that, that

          3  concludes the testimony of today's Committee on

          4  Transportation hearing. I want to thank Madam

          5  Speaker Christine Quinn, Council Member Dan

          6  Garodnick, and most of all, Council Member Joe

          7  Addabbo. Goodnight, everyone.

          8                 (The following written testimony was

          9  read into the record.)

         10

         11

         12  Written Testimony Of:

         13  Virginia Minardi

         14  189 Beach 118 Street

         15  Rockaway Park, NY 11694

         16  212-848-7319

         17

         18

         19                 In favor of keeping Q53 a Limited Bus

         20  Route (deleting local bus stops in Ozone Park,

         21  Woodhaven, Rego Park etc.) The ride is too long (18

         22  miles) for the bus to be declared local. The Q53

         23  Limited has to be the quick workhorse, because our

         24  travel is yet to be complete after the ride. We

         25  transfer to trains, the Long Island Rail Road and
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          2  other buses. After all, the Q11 (provides local

          3  stops for the Howard Beach, Ozone Park, Woodhaven,

          4  Rego Park etc.)

          5                 Manhattan Express Bus - Three QM16s

          6  leaving Rockaway Park is too little. They should be

          7  scheduled throughout the day and on weekends. Build

          8  it, and we will come! For return, three QM16s

          9  departing Manhattan is also too little... The

         10  schedules are also off. The drivers are not

         11  aggressive on this line either. In addition, the

         12  drivers should talk with one another, if the Long

         13  Island Expressway is very busy (Thurs and Fridays

         14  are often jammed) then, the bus should take Queens

         15  Blvd.

         16                 Q35 - Many kids take these buses to

         17  and from school. Add more time schedules around

         18  6:30-8:00 AM and home 2:15-4:30pm!

         19                 Park and Ride - 116th St. Build a

         20  second and third story in our muni-lot. Build a

         21  parking garage on Beach 93rd and the Beach. Have

         22  buses leave to and from Riis Park.

         23                 9:00 AM- 5:00 PM Monday through

         24  Friday - is a farce. No one works these hours any

         25  longer. We work weekends, we commute early, we
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          2  commuter later and stay at work later.

          3  Transportation needs to work around everyone's

          4  schedules. And it creates jobs, hire, hire, hire

          5  drivers, maintenance and admin crew!

          6                 QM15 - runs till 1AM, include

          7  Rockaway on this bus line, allow us to get into the

          8  Peninsula. Your depot is also in Rockaway, all last

          9  stops should be 94th St. Rockaway Beach Blvd.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 9:30 p.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 24th day of April 2007.

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          3

          4
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          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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